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� Strategically positioned communications investments in the
Mainland and Hong Kong

� Acquired the telecommunications wholesaler Telecom 1616
in Hong Kong

� Much improved results in the Aviation, and Mainland Power
sectors

� Power and Civil Infrastructure produce reliable revenue and
cash flow

� Unrivalled financial strength and flexibility to grasp future
opportunities

Highlights

1

in HK$ million

Profit Attributable to Shareholders

Per Share (HK$)

Earnings

Dividend 

regular

special

in HK$ million

Shareholders’ Funds

Net Debt

2000

3,430

1.56

0.85

-

0.85

41,178

10,508

1999

2,966

1.39

0.75

2.00

2.75

38,178

10,519

Change 

16%

12%

13%

8%

0%
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Results

In the year 2000 CITIC Pacific achieved a net profit of

HK$3,430 million, an increase of HK$464 million and 16% above

the previous year.  Earnings per share increased at a lower rate

of  12% as a result of the additional shares issued in February

2000.

The improvement in CITIC Pacific’s businesses was much

stronger than these results suggest for, as I reported to

shareholders earlier in the year, the infrastructure portion of the

newly completed tunnel at Discovery Bay was written off

reducing profit, and in 1999 a non-recurrent profit was recorded

on the sale of infrastructure projects.  In 2000 the aviation sector

performed particularly well.  

The Board recommends a final dividend of HK$0.65 per share

to give a total of HK$0.85 for the year.  The dividend per share

for 2000 is 13% higher than the previous year, excluding a

special dividend paid in 1999.

Communications

Building the China Express No.1 Backbone Network in Mainland

China has proceeded on schedule.  At the end of 2000 the fibre

loops linking Beijing, Wuhan, Guangzhou and Shanghai had

been completed, and the installation and testing of equipment

are proceeding well.  The installation of the cables and

equipment from Zhengzhou to Xian, Wuhan to Chengdu and

Beijing to Shenyang is being accomplished smoothly.  CITIC is

negotiating with the relevant departments of the Ministry of

Information Industry in handling jointly matters related to the

operation and licensing of the network.

In November 2000 CITIC Pacific received permission to buy

50% of CITIC Guoan Co., Ltd. from CITIC, which retains the

other 50% shareholding.  CITIC Guoan is the controlling

shareholder in cable television network provider CITIC Guoan

16%

12%

0.65

0.85

13%
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Information Industry Co., Ltd., with which the “China Express

No.1 Backbone Network” will have substantial synergy through

transmission of programming and the connection to end users of

about 4 million today.

In May 2000 CITIC Pacific acquired 100% of Telecom 1616,

a wholesaler of IDD capacity based in Hong Kong, and renamed

it CITIC Telecom 1616.  In the last several months of 2000,

CITIC Telecom 1616 has upgraded its network capabilities and

substantially increased its market share of calls from Hong

Kong.  It plans to begin becoming a wholesaler of data capacity

towards the end of 2001.

CTM in Macau, the newly acquired CITIC Telecom 1616 and

CITIC Guoan are all profitable, and the communications

business in the Mainland shows enormous promise.

Aviation

CITIC Pacific owns over one quarter of the Hong Kong aviation

sector, and has played a key role in the industry’s development

in Hong Kong over the last few years.  

Cathay Pacific and Dragonair both recorded outstanding

results for the year 2000 in which both passenger and cargo

traffic grew substantially.  Cathay carried a record 11.9 million

passengers, and both the passenger load factor and yield

increased. Cargo turnover rose strongly and now accounts for

almost 30% of Cathay’s revenue.

Dragonair carried a record of 2.7 million passengers and the

load factor also increased, particularly for cargo services.

Dragonair moved into Dragonair House at Chek Lap Kok in

June 2000, and also operated its first all-cargo flights to

Shanghai and Europe.

1616 100%

1616

1616

1616

30%
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CITIC Pacific is committed to aviation which has great

potential, and we are exploring new opportunities to expand in

the sector with cargo of particular interest.  

Civil Facilities

The 3 bridges, 2 tunnels and road in Shanghai, and the bridge in

Chongqing continue to contribute substantial and stable cash

flow to CITIC Pacific.  In May 2000 the Shanghai government

suspended tolls at the cross Huangpu River facilities to

encourage the development of Pu Dong, but our contracts

continue to be honoured demonstrating the value of substantial

and reliable partners.

In Hong Kong, the Eastern Harbour Crossing had an average

daily road traffic of 72,000 vehicles per day, an increase of 5%.

The Western Harbour Tunnel (“WHT”) increased its toll in

December 2000 for the first time since opening.  Traffic

continues to grow steadily, but for toll revenue to reach the

expectations at the time when the tunnel was built, better

connecting road systems and  negotiation on the tolls at the three

cross harbour tunnels are required.

CITIC Pacific will continue to seek investment in civil

infrastructure projects with sound economic fundamentals.

Power

We are proud that our power plants, particularly the largest at

Ligang, Jiangsu Province, continue to be some of the most

efficient power producers in the Mainland.  A total of 10,550

million Kwh of electricity was generated by CITIC Pacific’s

power plants at Ligang, Zhengzhou and Kaifeng, an increase of

1,340 million Kwh compared with 1999.  The two plants

supplying both heat and power in Shandong province performed

according to plan.  

The first unit of the new 400 MW (2 x 200 MW) power station

in Huhhot, Inner Mongolia is expected to be completed in early

2002, and the second unit should become operational by the end

72,000 5%
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of 2002.  We expect to obtain approval for the development of

phase III (2 x 200 MW) of the Xinli power station in Zhengzhou

shortly and detailed development planning is in progress.  CITIC

Pacific is considering to expand the power plants at Ligang and

acquire other existing power plants in the Mainland.

Trading and Distribution

The total number of motor vehicle units sold in Hong Kong in

2000 increased by 22% compared with 1999 and DCH’s market

share increased by 1%.  

DCH added three franchises to sell domestically-produced and

imported motor vehicles in Mainland China, and from 1 January

2001 DCH is delighted to be the exclusive dealer in both Hong

Kong and Mainland China for both “Bentley” and “Rolls

Royce”.

The food-related businesses in Hong Kong and the cosmetics

business of Shiseido performed strongly, and the electrical

business improved significantly.  However, the Engineering

division suffered from lack of new business in a depressed

property market.

In March 2000 DCH acquired a distributor of health care

products in Hong Kong, Macau and the Mainland, now renamed

DCH Healthcare Products Limited.  Steps are being taken to

significantly advance its business, especially in Mainland China.  

In February 2001 CITIC Pacific acquired Sims Trading

Company, a leading distributor of about 60 international brands

of food and beverages to the catering and retail industry in Hong

Kong, Macau and Mainland China.  Sims’ strong national

distribution capability in China provides synergy to that of

DCH’s.  I welcome their over 600 employees into the CITIC

Pacific family.

20

22%

1%
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Property

Discovery Bay “La Serene” and “Neo Horizon” were released for

sale during 2000 and 93% of the units have been sold.  The

superstructure for phase 11 and 12 of Discovery Bay’s new

development is in progress and sales may begin as early as the

end of 2001.  

The tunnel connecting Discovery Bay with the Lantau

expressway road system was opened for traffic in April enabling

a connection to mains water supply in December adding to the

attractions of Discovery Bay as a home.

Finance

A major development has been the increasing availability of RMB

finance which will reduce currency risk of our Renminbi

businesses, and will also significantly broaden our ability to

expand in the Mainland.  We are currently engaged in active and

encouraging discussions with a view to raise substantial amount

of long term RMB funds.

CITIC Pacific has excellent liquidity with total cash on hand

and available committed facilities at the year end of well over

HK$10 billion, providing unrivalled financial strength and

flexibility to take advantage of future investment opportunities.  

Outlook

The economy in Mainland China continues to maintain its

steady growth and China’s accession to the World Trade

Organization will be an added stimulus.  CITIC Pacific has the

management expertise, market experience and financial strength

to expand when good opportunities arise in our areas of focus

and expertise.

CITIC Pacific will continue to focus on Hong Kong and

Mainland China, and the infrastructure, trading and distribution

and property sectors.  Your Board sees great opportunities in

93%
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these business areas and they will combine to meet our financial

objective of enhancing our shareholders’ value by providing a

superior return on capital over the long term.

May I take this opportunity to thank our shareholders,

bankers and business associates for their unfailing support

which is the basis of CITIC Pacific’s success.  Many thanks to my

fellow directors and all the Company’s staff, including those in

subsidiaries and associated companies, for their hard work and

dedication, without whom the substantial progress in 2000

would have been impossible.

Larry Yung Chi Kin Chairman

Hong Kong, 19 March 2001
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CITIC Pacific’s business continues to be concentrated in Hong

Kong, Macau and Mainland China focused on infrastructure in its

broadest sense, including telecommunications, power generation,

civil facilities and environmental projects supported by trading

and distribution, and property development.  The Company’s

existing infrastructure businesses and trading operations continue

to generate reliable income and strong cash flow, serving as a solid

base on which the Company is able to develop new business,

particularly in communications.  

Infrastructure

COMMUNICATIONS

Ownership

Location

China Express No.1 Backbone prc 60%

Network

CITIC Guoan prc 50%

CITIC Telecom 1616 Hong Kong 100%

CTM (Macau Telecom) Macau 20%

Contribution to earnings

Year HK$ million Proportion of total earnings

2000 92 2%

1999 51 1%
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China Express No.1 Backbone Network

In early 2000 CITIC Pacific positioned itself prominently into the

communications market in the Mainland China by undertaking the

development of a state-of-the-art nation-wide optical fibre

backbone network known as China Express No.1 Backbone

Network that will cover all the 24 provinces (except Taiwan), 4

autonomous regions and the 4 municipalities directly under the

Central Government.  CITIC Pacific is a 60% partner in the

Network with CITIC Beijing (our Beijing based principal

shareholder) and CITIC Pacific’s Chairman, Larry Yung, each

having a 20% interest.

More than 22,000 km out of a total of 32,099 km physical

length of optical fibre was laid by March 2001, of which nearly

6,000 km is being fitted with the latest equipment after having

passed acceptance tests.

The China Express No.1 will be equipped with state-of-art

Lucent’s Wavestar 400G DWDM, Wavestar TDM 10G SDH

transmission and switching system and Cisco’s GSR 320G Routing

switch, which will provide complete support to a wide range of

communication protocols and service capabilities.

The first phase of the equipment installation is divided into two

sections, the first section linking Beijing in the north passing

through Wuhan and ending in Guangzhou in the south totaling

2,882 km has been completed, technical testing is in progress and

the result so far is satisfactory.  The next section starts from

Guangzhou passing through Fuzhou and linking Shanghai in the

east part of China totaling 2,649 km.  Equipment installation is

underway and expected to be completed by the first quarter of this

year.

The second phase will start from Shanghai going through He

Fei and back to Beijing to complete the loop.  This will be

complemented by an alternative route from Shanghai through He

Waves ta r

400G, TDM 10G SDH
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Fei and connecting to Wuhan to form a more protective ring.  The

acceptance test for the second phase fibre is underway, and

equipment installation has also started.  According to the plan, the

second phase will be completed by the second quarter of 2001.

The first two phases will consist of 110 nodes in total,

including 5 backbone nodes and 10 main nodes.  Upon

completion, it will form a ring topology network covering major

parts of the economically developed areas in Mainland China.  We

expect that the network will become operational and start to

generate revenues in the second half of 2001.

In due course, our backbone network will be connected to

metropolitan and local access networks in major Chinese cities to

provide end-to-end connectivity to both corporate and retail

customers.  Metropolitan networks are likely to be developed

through joint ventures with local government or other entities, and

local access networks are expected to be built based on Ethernet

technology and through copper twisted pairs.

CITIC Pacific also plans to provide value-added

telecommunications services through our strategically located data

centres in major Chinese cities modeled on the design and network

architecture of international first tier carriers and service

providers.  These data centres will also benefit from the

substantial and reliable bandwidth of the China Express No.1

Backbone Network.  

In order to achieve our ambitions in the communications areas,

a license is required under the recently published regulations, and

our partner CITIC Beijing, is working closely with relevant parties

and government agencies to secure a comprehensive set of service

licenses.

110 5
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CITIC Telecom 1616

In May 2000 CITIC Pacific acquired 100% of Telecom 1616

Group and subsequently renamed it as CITIC Telecom 1616.  This

Group has an External Telecommunication Service license and is

one of the largest IDD capacity wholesalers in Hong Kong.  CITIC

Telecom 1616 will serve as a global interconnection platform.

Together with our China Express No.1 Backbone Network, CITIC

Telecom 1616 platform in Hong Kong will act as a converging

point for telecommunications traffic between China and the rest of

the world.

Since the acquisition, CITIC Telecom 1616 has upgraded the

network capacities and aggressively expanded its business through

alliances with major international telecom carriers.  Total volume

in term of calling minutes per month increased three times by the

end of the year to reach 64 million minutes.  The momentum

continued in 2001, a number of new agreements have been

finalised and the management is very confident that substantial

revenue growth will be achieved.  Currently, CITIC Telecom 1616

is only engaged in voice business and the company is preparing to

commence data services towards the end of 2001.  It is anticipated

that data transmission business in the region will grow in a fast

pace.  With its broad business contacts and proven wholesaling

capabilities, CITIC Telecom 1616 is in a good position to penetrate

in the data business.  

CITIC Guoan

After receiving the relevant government approvals in November

2000, the Company’s shareholders approved the purchase of a

50% interest in CITIC Guoan Co., Ltd. from CITIC Beijing, which

retains the other 50% interest.  CITIC Guoan’s main business is its

controlling 69.8% interest in CITIC Guoan Information Industry

Co., Ltd. (“Guoan Information”), a company whose shares are

1616

1616

1616

1616

1616
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listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange.  Guoan Information

operates cable television networks in cities such as Wuhan,

Shenyang, Qinhuangdao and Tangshan with near 4 million

subscribers today, and it is expected that the total numbers of

subscribers to the network may reach 7 million in 2001.  The

acquisition will also have substantial synergy with CITIC Pacific’s

investment in the China Express No.1 Backbone Network by

transmitting programs through the network to end-users.

Besides cable television, CITIC Guoan has investment interests

in various ICP projects, multi-media advertising services and hotel

management.  CITIC Guoan also owns 100% of CITIC Building, a

grade A office building located in the centre of Beijing City.

CTM

Companhia de Telecomunicacoes de Macau provides fixed line,

mobile telephone services and internet services to the people of the

Macau SAR.

CTM reported a net profit after tax of MOP297.5 million for the

year ended 31 December 2000 compared with MOP265 million in

1999.  The company’s mobile phone base increased 21% to

144,000, and internet subscribers including narrow and

broadband reached 30,000, an increase of 57% over the previous

year.  CTM intends to provide WAP and GPRS mobile services in

2001.

?O)Xg
@@@@@@@@@@@)g
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POWER GENERATION

Installed Capacity

Ownership (in Megawatts)

Location

Ligang Jiangsu 56.3% 1,400

Xinli Henan 50% 600

Kaifeng Henan 50% 125

Huhhot Inner Mongolia 35% -

Weihai Shandong 49% 24

Shouguang Shandong 49% 24

CLP Holdings Hong Kong 3.9% 8,263

Contribution to earnings

Year HK$ million Proportion of total earnings

2000 548 13%

1999 1,199 29%

The Ligang coal-fired power station, located near the city of

Wuxi in Jiangsu province in the PRC, has a total design capacity of

2,600 Megawatts (“MW”).  Currently installed capacity is 1,400 MW

comprised of two phases, both of 2 x 350 MW.  A total of 6,880

million Kwh of electricity was generated in 2000 – 12.5% more than

previous year.  The feasibility study and detailed planning for

phase III of Ligang are in progress.

The Xinli coal-fired power station, located in Zhengzhou, Henan

province, has a design capacity of 1,000 MW and installed capacity

is 600 MW consisting of a phase I (2 x 200 MW) and a phase II (1 x

200 MW).  A total of 3,062 million Kwh of electricity was generated

from the Xinli plant in 2000, an increase of 7% over last year.  The

260

140

35

12.5%

100

60 ( 

20 ) ( 20

)
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phase III development plan (2 x 200 MW) has been approved by

the government and a feasibility study is in progress.

Kaifeng power station, which is also located in Henan province,

has a design capacity of 725 MW.  The phase I (1 x 125 MW)

station generated 618 million Kwh of electricity in 2000, an

increase of 14%. 

The construction of a 2 x 200 MW power station in Huhhot,

Inner Mongolia commenced in the last quarter of 1999.  The first

unit is scheduled for completion in early 2002 and the second unit

is expected to be operational by the end of 2002.  CITIC Pacific

has 35% equity interests in this project.

The Weihai thermal power plant in Shandong province

generated 60 million Kwh of electricity and 750,000 tonnes of high

temperature/pressure steam in 2000, and an additional 12 MW

generator and a 130 T/H boiler were installed.  The Shouguang

thermal power plant, also in Shandong province, generated 182

million Kwh of electricity and 1,030,000 tonnes of high

temperature/pressure steam.  

Power generation is an important part of CITIC Pacific’s

business and the Company remains committed to continued

expansion of its power generation capacity in China in the coming

years.  We are actively seeking opportunities to acquire existing

power plants with the potential for further development and/or

improved operational efficiency.

During 2000, CITIC Pacific sold about 2.4% of its interest in

CLP Holdings, and at 31 December 2000, approximately 3.9%

remained.

CLP’s net profit for the year ended 31 December 2000 was

HK$5,768 million, including its share of HK$1,132 million arising

from the sales of Laguna Verde, the former power station site at

Hok Un.

30.62

7% ( 20

)

72.5 ( 12.5

)

6.18 14%

20

35%

0.6

1.2

130

1.82

2.4%

3.9%
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CIVIL FACILITIES

Ownership

Location

Yang Pu bridge Shanghai 45%

Nan Pu bridge Shanghai 45%

Xu Pu bridge Shanghai 45%

Da Pu Lu tunnel Shanghai 45%

Yanan East Road tunnel Shanghai 50%

Hu Jia toll road Shanghai 45%

Chongqing Chang Jiang LJT bridge Chongqing 50%

Western Harbour Crossing Hong Kong 35%

Eastern Harbour Crossing Hong Kong

- road 69%

- rail 50%

Contribution to earnings

Year HK$ million Proportion of total earnings

2000 1,265 31%

1999 1,234 29%

CITIC Pacific has an interest in all the cross Huangpu River

facilities - two tunnels and three bridges - connecting Pu Dong,

the government designated Special Economic Development Area,

and Pu Xi, the old part of the city of Shanghai.  From 1 May

2000, the Shanghai Municipal Government eliminated toll

collection at all the cross Huangpu River facilities to stimulate the

development of the Pudong Special Economic Zone.  The

Government has confirmed that this change will not affect CITIC

Pacific’s investment return, and cash flow has continued to be

received as stipulated in the original Cooperation Agreement.
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CITIC Pacific has a 45% interest in a joint venture company

owning a 20-year franchise to operate the 21km Hu Jia Toll Road

linking Shanghai and the municipality of Jia Ding.  Daily average

traffic throughput for the year ended 31 December 2000 increased

by 27% compared to the previous year to 19,394 vehicles per day.

The Chongqing Chang Jiang LJT Bridge (“Chang Jiang” means

“Long River” and the river is known as “Yangtze River”),

comprises a 10.2 km, dual two-lane main bridge and approaching

roads containing 5 bridges, 4 interchanges and 2 tunnels.  The

bridge links the Sichuan Chengyu Expressway in the north and

Sichuan-Guizhou Highway in the south.  For the year ended 31

December 2000, the average daily traffic throughput was

approximately 13,200 vehicles, about the same as last year.

In Hong Kong, CITIC Pacific is a 35% shareholder in the

company that built the Western Harbour Crossing (“WHC”) and

now operates it under a 30-year franchise.  WHC is a key section of

the Route 3 highway which links Hong Kong, Mainland China and

Chek Lap Kok Airport.  Traffic flow continues to grow steadily

and in 2000, 42,800 vehicles in average used the Tunnel each day.

A toll increase of HK$5 for all classes (higher for buses) was

effected on 3 December 2000, after which, the WHC recorded its

first profit since completion.

. Traffic volume at WHC is still much below the original

projections, and any significant improvement must await

narrowing of the difference in the tolls with other cross harbour

tunnels, and resolving the congestion in the road network leading

to the WHC. 

CITIC Pacific is the controlling shareholder of the Eastern

Harbour Crossing (“EHC”) road tunnel which was used by 72,000

vehicles a day in 2000 and recorded a profit of HK$320 million.

45%

27%

19,394

(

) 10.2

35%

( )
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With the anticipated increase in traffic from the development

projects in southeast Kowloon and the Tseung Kwan O area, it is

expected that strong earnings and stable cash flows will continue

to be generated by the EHC.

ENVIRONMENT

Ownership

Location

South East N T Landfill Hong Kong 30%

(“Green Valley Landfill”)

Chemical Waste Treatment Plant Hong Kong 20%

(“Enviropace”)

West Kowloon Transfer Station Hong Kong 30%

North Lantau Transfer Station Hong Kong 50%

Airport Waste Hong Kong 30%

Contribution to earnings

Year HK$ million Proportion of total earnings

2000 55 1%

1999 58 1%

The Green Valley Landfill at Junk Bay, in the South East New

Territories of Hong Kong, is a landfill of 100 hectares.  In 2000,

over 3 million tonnes of waste was processed, an average of 8,227

tonnes per day, slightly lower than last year.  

Enviropace, located on Tsing Yi Island, is the only chemical

waste treatment plant in Hong Kong.  More than 63,000 tonnes of

waste was treated in 2000.
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The West Kowloon Transfer Station has a design capacity of 2,500

tonnes per day.  Approximately 566,000 tonnes of waste was

processed in 2000, an increase of 0.4% compared to 1999.

CITIC Pacific also has a 50% interest in a 17-year contract to

operate a waste transfer station in North Lantau, with a capacity

of 1,200 tonnes per day, serving the Chek Lap Kok Airport,

Discovery Bay and nearby areas.  More than 38,000 tonnes of

waste was processed during 2000, an increase of 15% compared

to 1999.  Airport Waste is the waste collection facility of the

airport at Chek Lap Kok where more than 13,000 tonnes of waste

was collected in 2000.

During the year, Waste Management Inc., the former foreign

partner of CITIC Pacific’s environmental projects, transferred its

shareholding to Vivendi Environment – an international company

specialising in environmental protection. 

AVIATION

Ownership

Location

Cathay Pacific Hong Kong 25.6%

Dragonair Hong Kong 28.5%

hk Air Cargo Terminals Hong Kong 10%

Contribution to earnings

Year HK$ million Proportion of total earnings

2000 1,475 36%

1999 659 16%

0.4%

50%

15%

Waste Management Inc.

Vivendi Environment
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Cathay Pacific is an international passenger and freight carrier

serving 51 cities in Europe, the Middle East, North America, South

Africa and major destinations in Asia from its base in Hong Kong.

CITIC Pacific is the second largest shareholder of Cathay Pacific.  

Cathay Pacific’s profit of HK$5,005 million was a dramatic

improvement compared with HK$2,180 million achieved in 1999.

Revenue rose to HK$34,523 million, an increase of 20.3% over

1999.  During the year 2000 Cathay Pacific carried 11.9 million

passengers – more than in any previous years.  Passenger load

factor of 76.2% was high and passenger yield rose 6.2%.  Cathay

Pacific will be increasing its capacity in 2001 with the addition of

eleven wide body aircraft to the fleet.  These aircraft will provide a

17% increase in fleet size and enable the airline to add frequency

of flights to its key destinations.

Cathay Pacific’s cargo operation enjoyed another strong growth

in 2000.  Cargo turnover rose by 21% and now makes up almost

30% of total revenue.  During the year the airline commenced

joint operations with DHL Worldwide Express to provide overnight

cargo and passenger flights in the region. 

CITIC Pacific is also the second largest shareholder in

Dragonair which operates flights to 27 destinations in Asia, of

which 17 are in China.  Dragonair commenced freighter service in

July, with service to Shanghai and to Amsterdam and Manchester

via Dubai.  On the Beijing and Shanghai routes, Dragonair now

flies 27 and 41 times per week.  Passenger revenue achieved a

record of HK$3,295 million representing a 20% growth over 1999. 

20.3%

76.2%

6.2%

17%

21%

30% DHL
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The company carried 2.7 million passengers and uplifted

93,700 tonnes of cargo in 2000, an increase of 15% and 42%

respectively over 1999.  Dragonair will be adding one A330s and

two B747-300 freighters to its current 15 aircraft fleet in 2001.

Dragonair House at Chek Lap Kok Airport became the

headquarters of Dragonair after its completion in June 2000.  It

contains offices and flight training centre including a simulator.

HACTL operates “Super Terminal 1” at the Chek Lap Kok

Airport which is the largest air cargo terminal in the world.  It

consists of an air-cargo handling facility with a capacity of 2.4 million

tonnes per year, plus a 200,000 tonnes per year express freight centre.

During 2000, a total of 1.7 million tonnes of cargo was handled, an

increase of 10% compared with 1999.

Trading and Distribution

Ownership

Location

Dah Chong Hong Hong Kong 100%

Contribution to earnings

Year HK$ million Proportion of total earnings

2000 226 6%

1999 230 5%
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Dah Chong Hong Holdings Limited (“DCH”), a 100% subsidiary

of CITIC Pacific, is a major Hong Kong based trading company

with substantial operations in Hong Kong and Mainland China,

and business in Japan, Canada and Singapore.

DCH is one of the largest motor distributors in Hong Kong with a

25% market share.  Its motor business includes the sale of motor

vehicles, after-sale service and the sale of accessories and parts.  It

represents a wide range of passenger and commercial vehicles in

Hong Kong, Mainland China and Macau, including Acura, Audi,

Bentley, DAF, GM, Honda, Isuzu, MAN, Nissan, Nissan Diesel, Rolls

Royce and Volkswagen.  In addition, it markets Isuzu in Singapore

and Acura in Canada.  In support of these sales, DCH operates three

100% owned purpose-built motor service centres in Hong Kong

with a gross floor area of 1,300,000 sq.ft., and has joint ventures

for vehicle sales, vehicle maintenance and spare parts supply

facilities in major cities throughout Mainland China.  

DCH has been awarded dealerships for a wide range of branded

automobiles in Mainland China, including locally produced

vehicles such as Guangzhou-Honda and Qingling.  In view of the

greatly improved competitiveness of locally made vehicles in

Mainland China in terms of quality and price, DCH has been

aggressively developing its Mainland distribution networks in

recent years and expects such efforts will gradually bear fruits in

the not so distant future.

DCH’s experienced a recovery in the first half of the year in an

environment where consumer spending improved but mainly due

to growth in sales volume not prices.  After a 16% contraction in

1999, the overall vehicle market in Hong Kong increased by 22%

in 2000.  Sales of European made vehicles were boosted by the

weak Euro during most of the year. 

25%

16%

22%



Review of Operations

22

Vehicle sales to Mainland China market were weak but

progress continues to be made in the sale of domestically

manufactured vehicles.  DCH continued to expand its vehicle

distributorship in Mainland China, a total of 1,690 vehicles were

sold, and 3 additional franchises were awarded in 2000.  With

effect from 1 January 2001, DCH was appointed as the exclusive

dealer in Hong Kong and the Mainland China for the Bentley and

Rolls Royce brands.

DCH’s trading division imports, exports and re-exports a large

number of items including rice and cereals, edible oils, Chinese

foodstuffs, meat and produce, cosmetics, healthcare products and

medical equipment, building materials, home electrical appliances

and audio-visual equipment.  DCH supplies food to retailers,

wholesalers and the catering industry in Hong Kong and Mainland

China. 

Food trading in Hong Kong performed steadily in 2000, and

the electrical appliances business improved its results, but the

engineering business was adversely affected by the weak property

market that reduced new business opportunities.  Cosmetics sales

recorded solid growth of 30% due to its successful multi-brand

strategy.

In 2000, DCH continued its drive to expand its food business in

Mainland China.  Nine DCH BBQ Shops were opened in Shanghai as

was its first joint venture theme restaurant, “Rainforest Café”, a

second “Rainforest Café” will be opened in Beijing in the second

quarter in 2001.  The business of DCH Jiangnanfeng (chicken) and

DCH Jinshan (pig) were both affected by the over-supply in the

Shanghai market.  However, progress has been made in exporting

the products to Japan and Hong Kong through DCH’s networks.

These ventures are being refocused in the light of experience

gained on consumers’ requirements.

1,690
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During the last few years, DCH has invested substantial

resources in improving its management information systems to

provide better services to customers, and also to improve its

operating efficiency.   

In February 2001 CITIC Pacific acquired 100% shareholdings

in Sims Trading Company Limited (“Sims”) from Dairy Farm

International Holdings Limited for a total consideration of

HK$450 million.  Sims is a leading distributor of internationally

renowned consumer product brands in Hong Kong, Macau and

Mainland China.  Its major brands include Maxwell House, Kraft,

Ovaltine, Pocari Sweat, Barilla, Tulip, Pauls, Avoset, Cow & Gate

and Ferrero.  Sims is also a major supplier and distributor of food

service products to the catering trade and retail outlets in Hong

Kong and Macau, with over 120 suppliers.  Sims not only provides

multi-temperature logistics services for its internal trading

operations, but it also provides these services for external

household and beverage brand owners such as Heineken and

Gillette.  The company has strong nationwide distribution

capabilities in China through joint ventures, branches,

representative offices and other types of establishments.  We

expect that Sims’ operation will provide synergy to and

complement DCH’s operations.

(

) 100%
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Contribution to earnings

Year HK$ million Proportion of total earnings

2000 422 10%

1999 740 18%

CITIC Pacific’s headquarters - CITIC Tower - is a landmark on

the Hong Kong Waterfront comprising of 562,000 sq.ft. of offices,

restaurants and retail shops, with a footbridge linking it to the

Admiralty MTR station.  The whole project was completed in two

years from the date when the land was acquired to the issue of

occupation permit, and the skill of CITIC Pacific’s property

development team was demonstrated.  The building is currently

91% occupied.

Discovery Bay is a residential development on a site of over

1,500 acres on the island of Lantau, Hong Kong, one of the future

growth areas in Hong Kong following the opening of the Chek Lap

Kok Airport.  In 1999 the Hong Kong SAR Government announced

91%

Note : Except for properties in Japan and Singapore that DCH owns mainly for

operational purposes, the properties are in Hong Kong

Property

Type Location Ownership

CITIC Tower Office Central 40%

Festival Walk Retail/Office Tat Chee Avenue 50%

DCH Commercial Centre Office Quarry Bay 100%

Discovery Bay Residential Township Lantau Island 50%

The Victoria Towers Commercial/Residential Canton Road 15%

Investment properties Various Various 100%



25

its plan to develop a “Disney” theme park near Discovery Bay

which will stimulate further development in that area.  

The developments of “La Serene” and “Neo Horizon”

consisting of 400 flats and a total floor areas of about 353,000

sq.ft. were put on sale in 2000, and 93% of the total units have

been sold.  In 2000, a land premium of HK$1.65 billion was paid

to the Government for the approved Master Plan 6 to build

additional floor areas of about 2.3 million sq.ft. at Discovery Bay,

and the construction work of the superstructure for the first 1 million

sq.ft. of phases 11 and 12 is in progress.  The tunnel connecting

Discovery Bay to the new airport road system has been opened for

traffic in April 2000 making Discovery Bay a more convenient

and even more attractive place to live in.  Completion of the

tunnel also facilitates water connected in December 2000 and

electricity supply and waste disposal for the existing and future

development at Discovery Bay.

CITIC Pacific is an equal partner with the Swire Group in the

development of a 1.2 million sq.ft. shopping and office complex

named “Festival Walk”.  The site of the complex is positioned at

the intersection of the Kowloon Canton Railway and Mass Transit

Railway Stations in Tat Chee Avenue, Kowloon.  The shopping

mall has been a great success attracting very large crowds since

opening.  Both retail (218 units) and office spaces (213,982 sq.ft.

lettable areas) at Festival Walk are fully occupied.

Following the completion of a 600,000 sq.ft. motor service

centre at Ap Lei Chau which replaced the Quarry Bay Motor

Service Centre, a high quality 381,000 sq.ft. office block named

DCH Commercial Centre was built at the old site and is now fully

leased.

93%
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CITIC Pacific is part of a consortium led by the Cheung Kong

Group which acquired a land site at Canton Road in Kowloon for

residential and commercial development.  The construction work

for the project is in progress with expected completion date in

2002.

Besides Discovery Bay, CITIC Pacific has a landbank available

for potential development in the future.  The major two pieces of

land are:

Land Site Estimated Total GFA

sq.ft.

• Hung Shui Kiu, N.T. 537,000

• Tung Chau Street, Kowloon 330,000

Relevant preparation works continued and once the

development climate is considered favourable, these projects will

be commenced as soon as possible.

Industrial Manufacturing

Ownership

Location

Jiangyin Xing Cheng Steel Works Wuxi 55%

Jiangyin Xingcheng Special Steel Works Wuxi 55%

Wuxi Huada Motors Wuxi 55%

Pirelli Telecom Cables  Wuxi 17.7%

Note : Wuxi is a major industrial city in Jiangsu province, prc

Contribution to earnings

Year HK$ million Proportion of total earnings

2000 29 1%

1999 22 1%

•

•

Review of Operations
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Jiangyin Xing Cheng Steel Works produces many grades of

carbon and alloy steel.  Through effective management and cost

control, the company achieved a pre-tax profit of RMB69 million

for the year ended 31 December 2000, a growth of 9% as

compared to previous year.  

Jiangyin Xingcheng Special Steel Works is a new steel mill

equipped with the most modern production facilities supplied by

a consortium led by Mannesmann Demag Huttentchnik of

Germany.  The steel mill commenced production in 1998 and is

specialised in producing special steels.  At the end of 1999 the

company signed a Technology Transfer Contract with Voest-

Alpine Industrial Service of Austria, a world leading steel maker,

to further improve the product efficiency and quality of its

products.  After the implementation of the new production process

and quality control procedures under the Voest-Alpine’s standard,

Xincheng Special Steel today is a well-known quality steel

producer in the region.  Its special steel products are particularly

suitable for the automobile industry which has huge growth

potential in China.  The company reported an excellent growth of

69% on sales turnover, and a pre-tax net profit of RMB61 million

was achieved for the year.  In 2000 the company also made

progress in developing export market.

Wuxi Huada Motors Company produces low noise, low vibration,

proper torque and smooth turn electrical motors for the domestic

and European market.  In year 2000, total sales were over

990,000 KW, an increase of 27% as compared to 1999.

Pirelli Telecom Cables mainly produces optical cables for

telecommunication industries.  CITIC Pacific’s joint venture

partner is Pirelli Cable, a well-known Italian industrial group.

Pirelli Telecom Cables reported a profit for the year ended 31

December 2000 compared to a loss last year.

9

Mannesmann Demag Huttentchnik

Voest-Alpine Industrial Service

Voest-Alpine

69

27

Pirelli Cable
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Review of 2000 Consolidated Financial Results

Attributable Profit

The net profit attributable to shareholders in 2000 was HK$3,430
million, an increase of 16% compared with HK$2,966 million
achieved in 1999.

Contribution

The following chart shows the contribution each business made

in the last five years.  Contribution and other terms used in this

report are defined on page 137.  For ease of year to year

comparison and appreciation of the trend, the profit made on the

sale of shares in Hong Kong Telecom in 1996 and in Dragonair in

1997 are excluded.  For these reasons the total contribution in

the table does not reconcile directly to the audited accounts. The

percentage is the proportion of contribution amongst these 8

businesses.

16%

37



29

Compared with the contribution in 1999:

� Aviation increased due to much improved passenger and cargo

loads at both Cathay Pacific and Dragonair, and greatly

increased profit at HACTL.

� The increased contribution by Civil Infrastructure resulted from

increased profit at the Eastern Harbour Crossing and a much

reduced loss at the Western Harbour Crossing, both in Hong

Kong.  The contribution from Mainland civil infrastructure was

steady.  In 1999 the profit from the sale of three infrastructure

projects was included in the results.

� Power Generation decreased due to the disposal of a 15%

shareholding in CLP in October 1999, offset by the profit on

selling a power plant in Shanghai in 1999 and greater returns

from power plants in the Mainland in 2000 resulting from

increased demand.

�

�

�

15%
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5

� Property’s contribution was depressed by writing off the

HK$244 million cost of newly completed tunnel infrastructure

at Discovery Bay.  Sale of Discovery Bay’s La Serene and Neo

Horizon in 2000 yielded only half the profit of Tierra Verde in

1999.  Rental income from investment properties rose

substantially.

� Trading and Distribution’s contribution fell 2%.  Motor profits

increased 157% and the food businesses based in Hong Kong

were stable. However, the Mainland food businesses suffered

losses due to fierce competition and an investment was made in

developing e-businesses.  Engineering performed poorly due to

a lack of new business in a depressed property market.

� Manufacturing results increased 32% due to higher sales.

Geographical Distribution   

�

� 2%

157%

�

32%

Taxation

The level of tax decreased mainly due to decrease in the taxation

charge of associated companies after the disposal of 15% in CLP in

the second half of 1999.
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Shareholders’ Returns

CITIC Pacific’s primary objective is to increase shareholder value

for which it has used earnings per share as a proxy.  The Company

expects its businesses to provide returns on investment over their

lives that will provide shareholders with an adequate return on

equity.

Earnings Per Share

Earnings per share were HK$1.56 in 2000, an increase of 12%

compared with HK$1.39 in 1999.

1.56

1.39 12%

Cash Flow Per Share

Cashflow per share was HK$2.7 in 2000. 2.7
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Shareholders’ Equity Per Share

Shareholders’ Equity per share at 31 December 2000 was

HK$20.5 as compared to HK$19.0 at 31 December 1999.

32

Shareholders’ Equity 

Shareholders’ Equity, consisting of Shareholders’ Funds plus

goodwill written off for accounting purposes, was HK$45.1 billion

as at 31 December 2000, an increase of 12% as compared to 31

December 1999. In February the company issued 100,000,000

new shares at a price of HK$40.38. Shareholders’ Equity was

reduced in 2000 by approximately HK$1 billion due to

repurchasing 31.4 million shares at an average price of HK$32.01.

In 2000, additional goodwill of approximately HK$1.8 billion was

written off to reserves on the acquisition of the Telecom 1616

Group and CITIC Guoan.

12%

4 0 . 3 8

100,000,000

32.01 31,400,000

1616

20.5

19.0
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Dividend Per Share

On the assumption the shareholders approve the payment of a

HK$0.65 final dividend per share for 2000, the regular dividend

will have increased 13% compared with 1999.

0.65

13%
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Turnover

Motor trading turnover increased 38% in the year of 2000

compared with the same period of 1999, but general trading

turnover increased only 4%. In 1999 the sale of four infrastructure

projects in Mainland China and 15% shareholding in CLP were

included in turnover. Other turnover increased by 90% in 2000

mainly due to increased sales of steel.

38% 4%

15%

90%

34
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Capital Expenditure

Capital expenditure for the year 2000 was mainly in

communication projects, property development at Discovery Bay

and the addition of fixed assets by the trading and manufacturing

subsidiaries.
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Group Liquidity

CITIC Pacific aims to finance its business with liabilities

appropriate to their cash flows, employing limited or non-recourse

project finance when it is available.  Financing and cash

management activities of the Group are centralized except where

operating business such as Dah Chong Hong or Sims Trading are

delegated authority to manage their own short term banking

facilities, mainly for trade finance.

CITIC Pacific maintains borrowing relationships with over 70

financial institutions based all over the world and aims to

diversify its funding sources through utilization of both the

banking and capital markets.

Currency risks are managed by financing non Hong Kong

dollar assets as far as possible with matching debt.  For instance

the US$ cash flows arising from most infrastructure projects in

Mainland China are matched against US$ debt.  In the past,

foreign entities or Sino-foreign joint ventures have had limited

access to RMB financing and it has been particularly difficult to

obtain long term RMB finance.  As the banking market in the

Mainland has developed, it has become increasingly feasible to

arrange long term RMB financing in large size.  CITIC Pacific’s

“China Express No.1” backbone project, for example, is largely

financed by RMB borrowings, except for the financing of imported

equipment, and a RMB long term loan for this project is currently

being finalized.

The continued development of both RMB debt and equity

market is very important to CITIC Pacific as our investment focus

is increasing towards Mainland China and projects generating RMB

cashflow.

36
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The denomination of the Group’s liabilities at 31 December

2000 after currency swaps were:-

CITIC Pacific employs a combination of financial instruments

to manage the fixed and floating interest rate and currency mix of

its total debt portfolio with a view to stabilizing and minimising

the overall cost of borrowing.

During 2000, CITIC Pacific completed several large scale fund

raising activities that improved the Group’s capital structure and

the debt maturity profile.  In February, CITIC Pacific placed 100

million ordinary shares to institutional investors raising almost

HK$4 billion.  In March, the Company raised HK$2.2 billion in a 5-

year syndicated facility from 20 banks.  In December, a HK$2.4

billion facility was arranged through an associated company,

Treasure Trove Limited, of which HK$1.47 billion is attributable to

CITIC Pacific.  In addition, the Company raised new funds or

extended the maturity of approximately HK$1.76 billion bilateral

facilities.  These transactions, combined with the substantial net

cash flow generated from operations, provided ample financial

resources.

At 31 December 2000, the Group’s total debt amounted to

HK$15.7 billion; cash and deposit with banks were HK$5.2 billion

to give net debt of HK$10.5 billion.  Undrawn facilities available to

the Group totalled HK$8.0 billion, of which approximately HK$5.6

billion were committed facilities,  HK$1.6 billion money market

lines, and the balance trade facilities.
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Leverage

Net debt divided by shareholders’ equity was 23% at 31

December 2000 compared with 26% at the end of 1999.

38

23%

26%

Total Debt

Total Debt decreased due to the repayment of bank facilities.
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Cash Flow From Operations

Cash contributed to CITIC Pacific Ltd in 2000 by all business in

the Group was HK$4.1 billion compared to HK$5.9 billion in 1999

(which included a non-recurrent of HK$2.3 billion from the sale of

infrastructure projects).  In 2000, the infrastructure sector

contributed approximately HK$2.7 billion mainly from power

generation in Mainland China, civil facilities, dividends of HK$404

million and HK$270 million were received from Cathay Pacific and

CLP respectively. The property sector contributed cash flow of over

HK$1.3 billion mainly from Discovery Bay property sales and there

was a significant increase in rental income.

4.6

4

Interest Cover

EBITDA / Interest expenses for the year 2000 was 4.6 compared to

4.0 in 1999, mainly due to a decrease in interest expense from

HK$1,246 million in 1999 to HK$1,157 million in 2000. 
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CITIC Pacific is committed to excellent standards of corporate

governance and first class business practices.

Board of Directors

The Board currently comprises twelve executive and seven non-

executive directors.  It meets four times a year to review financial

and operating performance and discuss future strategy.

The Audit Committee of the Board reviews the system of

internal controls throughout the Group, the completeness and

accuracy of its financial statements, and liaises on behalf of the

Board with external and internal auditors.  The Committee was

established in 1995 and comprises three independent non-

executive directors.  It met four times in 2000, together with

management and auditors, to review internal and external audit

reports and the interim and final financial statements of the

Group.

The Board has established an Executive Committee of

executive directors and senior managers who meet monthly to

review operational matters.

Codes

To ensure the highest standard of integrity in 1995 the Group

adopted a Code of Conduct defining the ethical standards

expected of all employees and the Group’s non-discriminatory

employment practices. Training courses on the Code are held

regularly for employees, and the Audit Committee receives a

report on its operation every year.

The Company has issued its own Code for Securities

Transactions by Directors and certain senior staff that follows the

Stock Exchange of Hong Kong’s Model Code for Securities

Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies contained in

Appendix 10 of the Exchange’s Listing Rules.  Throughout 2000

the Group has complied with the Code of Best Practice contained

in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.
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The Group has endorsed the guide to good employment

practices issued by the Employers’ Federation of Hong Kong to

promote good and responsible employment standards.

Financial Reporting

CITIC Pacific prepares its financial statements in accordance

with generally accepted accounting standards published by the

Hong Kong Society of Accountants.  Hong Kong accounting

standards broadly follow international accounting standards.  No

changes were made to the Group’s accounting policies in 2000

except the adoption of newly published standards on accounting

for group reconstructions and a revised standard on accounting

for investment properties.  The adoption had an immaterial effect

on the results of the Group.
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Larry Yung Chi Kin, aged 59, has been the Chairman of CITIC

Pacific Limited (“CITIC Pacific”) since 1990.  Mr Yung is also the

Vice Chairman and Managing Director of China International Trust

& Investment Corporation Hong Kong (Holdings) Limited (“CITIC

HK”) and an Executive Director of China International Trust and

Investment Corporation (“CITIC”).  He worked for 14 years with

the Ministry of Electric Power in the People’s Republic of China

(“PRC”) before coming to Hong Kong in 1978, and had extensive

management experience before establishing CITIC HK in 1987.  Mr

Yung is a Steward of the Hong Kong Jockey Club (“Jockey Club”)

and President of the Hong Kong Golf Club. 

Henry Fan Hung Ling, aged 52, is the Managing Director of

CITIC Pacific.  He is a Deputy Chairman of Cathay Pacific Airways

Limited (“Cathay”), a director of Hong Kong Dragon Airlines

Limited (“Dragonair”) and Hong Kong Resort Company Limited as

well as a Deputy Managing Director of CITIC HK.  He is also a non-

executive director of the Securities and Futures Commission.  Before

joining CITIC HK in 1987, Mr Fan has held senior management

positions and also practised law as a barrister.  He joined CITIC

Pacific in 1990.

Vernon Francis Moore, aged 54, is a Deputy Managing Director

and the Group Chief Financial Officer of CITIC Pacific.  He is a

director of Cathay and CLP Holdings Limited (“CLP Holdings”) and

the Chairman of the New Hong Kong Tunnel Company Limited,

Hong Kong Tunnels and Highways Management Company Limited

and the Western Harbour Tunnel Company Limited.  Mr Moore is an

Executive Director of CITIC HK which he joined in 1987 after

holding senior management positions with a number of financial

institutions.  He joined CITIC Pacific in 1990. 
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Peter Lee Chung Hing, aged 47, is a Deputy Managing Director of

CITIC Pacific and the Vice Chairman of CITIC Guoan Co., Ltd.

(“CITIC Guoan”).  He is also a director of other Group companies

concerned with communications projects and trading businesses.

Before joining CITIC HK in 1988, Mr Lee was with major banking

and shipping groups in Hong Kong.  He joined CITIC Pacific in 1990

and joined the Board in 1991. 

Norman Yuen Kee Tong, aged 52, joined CITIC Pacific as a

Deputy Managing Director in April 2001.  He is also the Chairman of

CITIC Pacific Communications Limited.  Prior to joining CITIC

Pacific, Mr. Yuen was the deputy chief executive officer of Pacific

Century CyberWorks Limited and had extensive experience in the

telecommunications business.  He serves on several public bodies and

advisory committees, including the Immigration Tribunal,

Registration of Persons Tribunal, Hong Kong Industrial Technology

Centre Corporation and the Trade Development Council.

Robert Ernest Adams, aged 57, has been an Executive Director

of CITIC Pacific since 1992.  He is a director of Cathay, Dragonair,

Hong Kong Air Cargo Terminals Limited, LSG Lufthansa Service

Hong Kong Limited and the corporate representative of CITIC

Pacific on the Board of Companhia de Telecomunicacoes de Macau

S.A.R.L. Before joining CITIC Pacific in 1992, Mr Adams worked

in Hong Kong in the management consulting and banking

industries, and is a past Chairman of the American Chamber of

Commerce in Hong Kong. 

Zhang Yichen, aged 37, joined CITIC Pacific as Executive

Director in March 2000.  He is also the President of CITIC Pacific

Communications Limited and a director of CITIC Guoan.  Prior to

joining CITIC Pacific, Mr Zhang was a Managing Director at Merrill

Lynch, and had extensive experience in the investment banking

industry in both the United States and the Greater China Region.

LSG

Lufthansa Service Hong Kong Limited 
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Yao Jinrong, aged 61, has been an Executive Director of CITIC

Pacific since March 2000.  He is the Managing Director of CITIC

Pacific China Holdings Limited.  He had served in China’s non-

governmental friendship organizations for more than 20 years

before he joined CITIC in early 1985.  Having joined CITIC

Group, he once served as executive secretary to CITIC’s former

Chairman Mr Rong Yiren and concurrently director of CITIC’s

general office.  From 1992 to 2000, he was President of China

International Economic Consultants Co., Ltd. (“CIEC”), a wholly

owned subsidiary of CITIC.  He is now Chairman of CIEC.  Since

1995 to 2000, he was an Executive Director and Vice President of

CITIC, and is now a Director of CITIC. 

Chang Zhenming, aged 44, has been an Executive Director of

CITIC Pacific since March 2000.  He joined CITIC in 1983 and had

extensive experience in finance, banking and securities business.  Mr

Chang is also an Executive Director and Vice President of CITIC, the

Chairman of CITIC Securities Co., Ltd. and a director of CITIC HK.

He is also the Chairman of The Securities Association of China.

Formerly, he was a Vice President of CITIC Industrial Bank.

Li Shilin, aged 51, has been an Executive Director of CITIC

Pacific since March 2000.  He is also an Executive Director and a

Vice President of CITIC.  He took the position of Chairman of

CITIC Guoan Group in 1997.  Mr Li’s current posts also include

Director of China United Telecommunications Corporation,

Chairman of CITIC Guoan, Chairman of CITIC Communication

Project Management Co., Ltd., Chairman of Xin De Telecom

International Ventures Co., Ltd., Chairman of CITIC Guoan

Information Industry Co., Ltd., Chairman of CITIC Ocean

Helicopters Co., Ltd., Vice Chairman of the Beijing Football

Association and Vice Chairman of the Beijing Golf Association.
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Carl Yung Ming Jie, aged 32, has been an Executive Director of

CITIC Pacific since March 2000.  He is a director of Cathay and

other Group companies concerned with infrastructure and industrial

projects in the PRC.  He joined CITIC Pacific in 1993.  He is the son

of Mr Larry Yung Chi Kin.

Liu Jifu, aged 57, joined CITIC Pacific as Executive Director in

April 2001.  He is also a director of CITIC HK.  Before joining CITIC

HK in 2000, Mr. Liu had worked with the Financial and Economics

Research Institute in the China Academy of Social Sciences for 5

years.  After 1983, he served as an executive director of China

Everbright Group Limited, the Chairman of China Everbright Travel

Inc and China PINGHE Import & Export Co., Ltd.

Willie Chang, aged 57, has been a director of CITIC Pacific since

1987.  He is the senior partner of Willie Chang & Co., Solicitors, with

over 31 years’ experience in legal practice, including as a partner of

Johnson, Stokes and Master.  Mr Chang is a member of the Board’s

Audit Committee.

Hamilton Ho Hau Hay, aged 50, joined the Board of CITIC

Pacific in 1992.  He is a director of Dah Chong Hong Holdings

Limited, an Executive Director of Honorway Investments Limited

(“Honorway”) and Tak Hung (Holding) Company Limited (“Tak

Hung”).  He is the brother of Mr Norman Ho Hau Chong.

Alexander Reid Hamilton, aged 59, has been a director of CITIC

Pacific since May 1994.  He was a partner of Price Waterhouse with

which he practised for 16 years.  He is a non-executive director of a

number of Hong Kong companies including COSCO Pacific Limited,

COSCO International Holdings Limited, Esprit Holdings Limited and

DBS Kwong On Bank Ltd.  Mr Hamilton is Chairman of the Board’s

Audit Committee.
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Hansen Loh Chung Hon, aged 63, joined the Board of CITIC

Pacific in May 1994.  He is the Managing Director of Wyler Textiles,

Limited, Chairman of Farrington American Express Travel Services

Limited and a non-executive director of The Hongkong and

Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited and CLP Holdings.  Mr Loh

is a member of the Board’s Audit Committee.

Norman Ho Hau Chong, aged 45, has been a director of CITIC

Pacific since May 1994.  He is an Executive Director of Honorway

and Tak Hung.  He is also a director of Hong Kong Ferry

(Holdings) Company Limited, Lee Hing Development Company

Limited, and a number of other quoted companies.  He is the

brother of Mr Hamilton Ho Hau Hay.

Chau Cham Son, aged 68, joined the Board of CITIC Pacific in

June 1995.  He is a director of China Overseas Land & Investment

Limited and other Hong Kong companies.  He has 30 years’

experience in the field of town planning, building and land

development in Hong Kong including being the first Director of

Buildings and Lands with the Hong Kong Government.  He is a

Steward of Jockey Club.

André Desmarais, aged 44, joined the Board of CITIC Pacific in

December 1997.  He is the President and Co-Chief Executive

Officer of Power Corporation of Canada.  He is also a member of

the Chief Executive’s Council of International Advisers of The

Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region and

member of the CITIC International Advisory Council. 

Board of Directors



Senior Managers

Bi Yupu, aged 59, is the General Manager, Power Project

Department of CITIC Pacific Limited (“CITIC Pacific”).  He is a

Deputy Managing Director of China International Trust &

Investment Corporation Hong Kong (Holdings) Limited (“CITIC

HK”).  He has been the chief representative of CITIC Pacific

Beijing Office since 7 December 1993.  Before joining the CITIC

Group in 1987, he worked for 20 years with the Ministry of

Electric Power in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) as a

senior engineer and deputy director of North China Electric

Power Research Institute.  He joined CITIC Pacific in 1993.

Chau Chi Yin, aged 45, is the Assistant Director, Financial

Control and Financial Controller of CITIC Pacific Group.  He is a

director of Hong Kong Resort Company Limited and other Group

companies concerned with industrial projects in the PRC.  He

joined CITIC HK in 1987 after experience in public accounting

and in financial management with a major Hong Kong listed

company, and joined CITIC Pacific in March 1990.

Leslie Chang Li Hsien, aged 46, is the Assistant Director,

Finance of CITIC Pacific Group.  He is a director of CITIC Guoan

Co., Ltd., Hong Kong Tunnels and Highways Management

Company Limited (“HKTHMC”) and the Western Harbour Tunnel

Company Limited (“WHT”).  Before joining CITIC Pacific in

1994, Mr Chang was a partner at KPMG Peat Marwick specializing

in financial services industry.  He was also the Director of Chinese

Practice of the firm in the United States.

Frances Yung Ming Fong, aged 29, is the General Manager,

Technology Development of CITIC Pacific Group.  She joined

CITIC Pacific in 1995 and is now responsible for the development

of technology based projects.  She is a Vice-President of CITIC

Pacific Communications Limited, a director of the New Hong

Kong Tunnel Company Limited (“NHKTC”) and other Group

companies concerned with communications projects.  She is the

daughter of Mr Larry Yung Chi Kin.
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Milton Law Ming To, aged 37, is the Assistant Director,

Business Development.  He is a director of  Hong Kong Dragon

Airlines Limited,  NHKTC, WHT, HKTHMC and other Group

companies concerned with infrastructure, environment, trading

and industrial projects in Hong Kong and the PRC.  Before joining

CITIC Pacific in 1992, he worked in the banking industry.

Polly Lawrence, aged 54, is the Assistant Director, Group

Human Resources and Administration of CITIC Pacific Group,

responsible for those functions in the Group.  She was head of

human resources and communications of a Hong Kong listed

company before she joined CITIC Pacific in 1993.

Chu Hon Fai, aged 55, is Chief Executive - Trading of Dah

Chong Hong Group and is responsible for the Group’s trading

business.  He was formerly a Deputy Chief Executive and joined

Dah Chong Hong Group in 1964.

Hui Ying Bun, aged 54, is Chief Executive - Motor of Dah

Chong Hong Group and is responsible for the Group’s motor

business.  He was formerly a Deputy Chief Executive and joined

Dah Chong Hong Group in 1966.

Peter Mak Shair On, aged 52, has been a Deputy Chief

Executive of Dah Chong Hong Group since March 2000.  He

joined CITIC Pacific in 1996 and had extensive experience in

shipping, property and China business activities before joining the

Group.

Mak Kwing Tim, aged 52, is the Managing Director of Reliance

Motors, Limited which holds the Honda, Acura and Nissan Diesel

franchises, and of Harmony Motors Limited which holds the

Volkswagen franchise.  He joined Dah Chong Hong Group in

1967.



Kenneth Tsang Yu Kit, aged 52, is the Managing Director of

Honest Motors, Limited, which holds the Nissan franchise, and of

DCH Motors (Bentley) Limited which holds the Rolls Royce and

Bentley franchises.  He joined Dah Chong Hong Group in

January 1996.  He had extensive experience in the motor trade in

Hong Kong before joining the Group.

Yip Moon Tong, aged 48, is the Managing Director of Dah

Chong Hong (Motor Service Centre) Limited.  He joined Dah

Chong Hong Group in 1992 after many years experience with the

Government in the area of mechanical services and engineering.

Alexander Chan Sing Cheung, aged 56, is an Executive

Director and the General Manager of NHKTC.  He joined NHKTC in

June 1991 having had extensive experience previously in the

shipping and transport industries.

Peter Chan Kwong Choi, aged 37, is a Director of CITIC

Telecom 1616 Group.  Before joining the CITIC Pacific Group in

May 2000, he was a Director of Telecom 1616 Limited with

extensive experience in the telecommunications industry.

Glenn Robert Sturrock Smith, aged 48, is the Chief Executive

of Sims Trading Company Limited (“Sims”) and Chairman of

the Guangdong Jing Yun Distribution Co. Ltd.  He joined CITIC

Pacific as a result of its acquisition of Sims on 28 February,

2001.  Prior to joining the Group, he had long experience in

marketing and distribution of consumer and food products with a

listed group of companies in Hong Kong.

1616

1616
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As at the end of December 2000, the Group employed 11,354

people in its headquarters in Hong Kong and its principal

subsidiary companies worldwide.  The two main areas of

concentration are in Hong Kong and Mainland China, employing

4,236 and 6,877 staff respectively.  Another 241 people are

employed in subsidiaries in Japan, Singapore and Canada.

11,354

4,236

6,877 241

Human Resources Management

The Group recognizes and respects each individual’s rights and

adopts non-discriminatory employment policies giving equal

opportunities to qualified candidates.  CITIC Pacific strives to be

consistent and fair in administering its human resources

management practices to the mutual benefit of its employees and

the Group.  A Code of Conduct was officially adopted in 1995

covering many aspects of business ethics, including relations with

suppliers and customers and employees in terms of employment

practices.  Everyone working on the affairs of the Group is

required to follow this Code and heads of business units are

charged with the responsibility of disseminating the Group’s

requirement to people concerned.  An explanation of the contents

Headcount Distribution

Hong Kong 

Mainland China 

Overseas 
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of the Code is included in the induction of new employees and

refresher courses conducted by internal or external speakers are

arranged for employees from time to time.  Any violation or non-

compliance of the Code would be subject to established

disciplinary procedure or actions as appropriate.   

Employee Compensation

The Group aims to attract, retain and motivate employees who

have the relevant skills, knowledge and abilities to develop,

support and sustain the continued success of the Group. On an

annual basis, CITIC Pacific reviews the cash compensation and

benefits programme provided for its employees to ensure that the

overall compensation is internally equitable and in line with local

norms and industry practice.  Shareholders approved a share

option scheme for the Group’s employees in May 2000 and details

are given on page 71.  Financial information on Directors’

emoluments can be found on page 95.

Retirement Benefits

In compliance with the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes

Ordinance (“MPFSO”), the CITIC Group Retirement Plan (“the

Plan”), formerly known as the Dah Chong Hong Holdings

Limited Amalgamated Provident Fund, was set up in 2000 under

a Trust Deed to provide retirement benefits for employees of the

Group and its subsidiaries and associates.  The Plan is a defined

contribution scheme registered under the Occupational

Retirement Schemes Ordinance and has obtained an exemption

certificate having satisfied the requirements of the MPFSO.  The

Group has appointed the HSBC Trustee (Hong Kong) Limited as

Trustee of the Plan, who in turn appoints the investment manager

and plan administrator to manage the Plan in accordance with

the Trust Deed and Rules.  Employees are offered a choice of

investments and the Trustee issues statements to members of the

Plan twice a year.

71

95
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A CITIC Group Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme was also

set up during the year in accordance with the stipulations of the

MPFSO to offer a choice to employees who opt not to join the Plan.

The Hang Seng Bank has been appointed as service provider of

this scheme.

The Group also operates other retirement schemes in three

subsidiary companies and details are given in the Notes to

Accounts on pages 96 to 97.  

Training & Development

CITIC Pacific is committed to providing a healthy organizational

environment conducive to each individual’s development.

Employees are encouraged to commit to continuous improvement

by taking responsibility of their own learning and self-

development.  Seminars and courses organized by professional

institutions are sponsored by the Group to help employees

improve their current job performance.  In-house training for all

levels of employees are organized regularly on product knowledge

and skills training.  Where applicable, the Group arranges

external service providers to conduct customized training

programmes on specific subjects such as managerial development

and e-commerce. 

CITIC Pacific also believes in investing in our future

generation.  The Group has put in place various management

trainee and apprentice training programmes to foster growth and

provide opportunities for the younger members of society.  

96 97

Human Resources
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The Group and its employees support the local communities it

operates in.  In 2000, CITIC Pacific and its subsidiary companies

actively participated in the Workplace English Campaign

organized by the Hong Kong SAR Government to raise the English

standard of the Hong Kong workforce.  

As in the past many years, the Group supports charitable work

and the promotion of sports, culture and the arts by sponsoring

many activities in Hong Kong and China, particularly the

Community Chest of Hong Kong.  CITIC Pacific was proud to be

one of the main sponsors of The 3rd Beijing Music Festival,

presenting the premiere of the opera “La Tosca” to music lovers

in the Mainland.  In Hong Kong, employees support the Red

Cross by regularly responding to its appeals and campaigns.

Most notably, employees of the Group actively take part in the

programmes of the Community Chest of Hong Kong such as the

charity walks and the dress down days.    
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Directors’ Report

The Directors have pleasure in presenting to shareholders their

report for the year ended 31 December 2000.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is holding its subsidiary

companies and the principal activities of its subsidiary companies

and associated companies and their major areas of operation are

set out in the Review of Operations on pages 8 to 27.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2000 are

set out in the consolidated profit and loss account on page 74.

The following tables give an analysis by principal activity of

turnover and contribution to the Group’s profit from consolidated

activities before net finance charges as required in the Listing

Rules.  It should be noted that these figures excluded income from

associated companies which form a substantial part of the

Company’s business:

8 27
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Profit from Consolidated 
Activities before 

Group Turnover Net Finance Charges

in hk$ million 2000 1999 2000 1999

By principal activity :

Trading & Distribution

Motor vehicles and related  services 4,614 3,343 274 165

Trading 4,260 4,113 20 114

Power and Civil Infrastructure 3,723 17,079 2,174 2,208

Industrial Manufacturing 2,339 1,563 124 81

Communications 232 - 51 -

Property 266 232 178 143

Others 574 94 208 70

Less : General & 

Administration

Expenses - - (584) (522)

16,008 26,424 2,445 2,259

Group Turnover

in hk$ million 2000 1999

By geographical area :

Hong Kong                                       8,361 18,337

China                                             5,897 6,805

Japan                                              471 537

Others                                              1,279 745

16,008 26,424
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Dividends

The Directors declared an interim dividend of HK$0.20 per share

in respect of the year ended 31 December 2000 which was paid on

22 September 2000.  The Directors recommended, subject to the

approval of the shareholders at the forthcoming Annual General

Meeting, the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.65 per share in

respect of the year ended 31 December 2000 payable on 21 May

2001 to shareholders on the Register of Members at the close of

business on 15 May 2001.

Reserves

The amounts and particulars of transfer to and from reserves

during the year are set out in note 20 to the accounts.

Donations

Donations made by the Group during the year amounted to 

HK$4 million .

Fixed Assets

Movements of fixed assets are set out in note 11 to the accounts.

Major Customers and Suppliers

The percentage of purchases and sales with the Group’s suppliers

and customers are as follows:

2000 1999

% %

Purchases

- the largest supplier                                   12  10

- five largest suppliers combined                        27  26

The aggregate percentage of sales to the Group’s five largest

customers is less than 30%.

20
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No Directors, their associates or shareholders (which to the

knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s

share capital) were interested at any time in the year in the above

suppliers or customers.

Subsidiary Companies

The names of the principal subsidiary companies, their principal

places of operation, their countries of incorporation and

particulars of their issued share capital are set out in note 27 to

the accounts.

Issue of Debt Securities

On 15 February 1996, the Company issued and sold us$100

million aggregate principal amount of its 7.37% Senior Notes due

2006 (“Senior Notes”) to financial institutions pursuant to note

purchase agreements dated 15 February 1996.  All of the Senior

Notes remained outstanding at the end of the year.

On 20 August 1997, the Company issued and sold Japanese

Yen 9.5 billion floating rate bond due 2002 (“Yen Bond”), for

general working capital purposes, to an investor pursuant to the

subscription agreement dated 15 August 1997.  All of the Yen

Bond remained outstanding at the end of the year.

In October 1998, CITIC Pacific Finance Limited, a wholly

owned subsidiary of the Company, issued and sold US$125 million

commercial paper notes (“Commercial Paper Notes”), for general

working capital purposes, to investors pursuant to the commercial

paper dealer agreement dated 30 September 1998.  All of the

Commercial Paper Notes have been repaid in September 2000.

Save as aforesaid, none of the other subsidiary companies have

issued any debt securities.

5%

27

7.37%

( ) 

CITIC Pacific Finance Limited 

( ) 
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Issue of Shares

On 24 February 2000, a total of 100,000,000 shares of HK$0.40

each were allotted and issued at HK$40.38 per share to

Westminster Investment Inc. (“Westminster”) for a total  of

HK$4,038 million.  These shares were issued pursuant to a top-up

subscription agreement made on 10 February 2000 between

Westminster and the Company relating to the subscription of

shares in the Company subsequent to the placing, through BNP

Prime Peregrine Securities Limited (“BNP Prime Peregrine”) and

BOCI Asia Limited of 80,000,000 existing shares (together with an

over-allotment option of an additional 20,000,000 shares granted

to BNP Prime Peregrine) of the Company to independent investors

at HK$40.38 per share.  The net proceeds of the subscription,

amounting to about HK$3,941 million, would be used mainly for

the acquisition of the telecommunications equipment and the

construction of auxiliary facilities to complement the fixed optical

fibre network acquired by the Group and for future possible

acquisitions in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) in

accordance with the business strategy of the Group.  The closing

price of the shares of the Company as quoted on The Stock

Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) on 10

February 2000 was HK$42.50 per share. 

Borrowings

Particulars of borrowings of the Group are set out in note 21 to the

accounts.

Directors

The Directors in office during the financial year ended 31

December 2000 were:

Mr Larry Yung Chi Kin

Mr Henry Fan Hung Ling

Mr Vernon Francis Moore

Mr Peter Lee Chung Hing

40.38 0.40

100,000,000 Westminster

Investment Inc. ( Westminster )

Westminster

( BNP )

40.38

80,000,000 ?@@?he
?3@?he
?S5?he
?.Y?he

BNP 20,000,000

( )

42.50
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Mr Robert Ernest Adams

Mr Patrick W S Chung (resigned on 1 January 2001)

Mr Zhang Yichen (appointed on 1 March 2000)

Mr Yao Jinrong (appointed on 16 March 2000)

Mr Chang Zhenming (appointed on 16 March 2000)

Mr Li Shilin (appointed on 16 March 2000)

Mr Carl Yung Ming Jie (appointed on 16 March 2000)

Mr Willie Chang

Mr Hamilton Ho Hau Hay

Mr Alexander Reid Hamilton

Mr Hansen Loh Chung Hon

Mr Norman Ho Hau Chong

Mr Chau Cham Son

Mr André Desmarais

Pursuant to Article 104(A) of the New Articles of Association

of the Company, Messrs Larry Yung Chi Kin, Peter Lee Chung

Hing, Willie Chang, Hamilton Ho Hau Hay, Chau Cham Son and

André Desmarais shall retire by rotation in the forthcoming

Annual General Meeting and all, being eligible, offer themselves

for re-election.

Biographical details of directors may be found on pages 42

to 46 .

Management Contract

The Company entered into a management agreement with China

International Trust & Investment Corporation Hong Kong

(Holdings) Limited (“CITIC HK”) on 11 April 1991 but with

retrospective effect from 1 March 1990 in which CITIC hk agreed

to provide management services to the Company and its

subsidiary companies for a management fee calculated on a cost

basis to CITIC hk payable quarterly in arrears.  The management

agreement is terminable by two months’ notice by either party.

Messrs Larry Yung Chi Kin, Henry Fan Hung Ling, Vernon

Francis Moore and  Chang Zhenming had indirect interests in the

104(A)

42 46
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management agreement as they are directors of CITIC HK.  A copy

of the management agreement will be available for inspection at

the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on 15 May

2001.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts of Significance

Mr Larry Yung Chi Kin, a director of the Company, is interested

in the following agreements as he has a 20% shareholding in

Lucky Zone Enterprises Inc. (“Lucky Zone”), the immediate

holding company of Bright Generation Holdings Inc. (“Bright

Generation”). 

Two agreements both dated 5 January 2000 which were

subsisting as at 31 December 2000 were entered into by Bright

Generation with “ ” and

Glory Supreme Engineering Limited respectively pursuant to

which Bright Generation, through six sino-foreign co-operative

joint venture companies which are economically 100% owned by

Bright Generation (“the Co-operative Joint Ventures”), agreed to

invest in a fixed optical fibre network installation in the PRC

aggregating 32,099 km when completed (“the Network”) for an

amount of RMB2,000 million.  Bright Generation also agreed to

procure the Co-operative Joint Ventures to enter into maintenance

agreements as referred therein under which a payment of  a

maximum of RMB30,000,000 per year will be made by the

Co-operative Joint Ventures for the maintenance of the Network

for 5 years.

Save as aforesaid, none of the Directors of the Company has or

at any time during the year had, an interest which is or was

material, either directly or indirectly, in any contract with the

Company or any of its subsidiary companies, which was

significant in relation to the business of the Company, and which

was subsisting at the end of the year or which had subsisted at

any time during the year.

( ) 

20%

( ) Glory Supreme

Engineering Limited
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Connected Transactions

Connected transactions disclosed in accordance with Chapter 14

of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock

Exchange are as follows:

1. Pursuant to the agreement dated 9 October 1996 made

between the Company, CITIC hk, Kerry Trading Co. Limited, The

Development Bank of Singapore Limited (collectively “the

Parties”) and Cheer First Limited (“Cheer First”), the Parties

being the shareholders of Cheer First agreed to make loans to

Cheer First which provided loan finance to Goldon Investment

Limited  (“Goldon”) for developing CITIC Tower.  CITIC hk

being a substantial shareholder of the Company and regarded as

its connected person holds 25% interest in Cheer First.  The loan

was made on normal commercial terms and in proportion to each

party’s shareholding in Cheer First.  It was with no fixed

repayment date and was interest bearing at the rate per annum

equivalent to Hong Kong Inter-Bank Offered Rate ( “HIBOR”). As

at 31 December 2000, the amount of shareholders’ loan due by

Cheer First to the Company was HK$2,161 million.

2. An agreement dated 18 December 2000 for the refinancing of a

loan in the amount of HK$2.4 billion was made between Treasure

Trove Limited (“Treasure Trove”), CITIC HK, the Company and

various financial institutions named therein who agreed to provide

a loan for HK$2.4 billion to Treasure Trove guaranteed by CITIC

hk and the Company severally in the proportions of 25/65 and

40/65 respectively.  The loan is unsecured, interest bearing at

0.66% above HIBOR, repayable in one lump sum 60 months after

the date of the agreement.  Treasure Trove is held by CITIC HK

and the Company on equal basis and is used to finance Goldon to

develop CITIC Tower.  A contribution agreement has been made
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between CITIC HK and the Company, which obliges the Company

and CITIC HK to account to each other if they make payments

under their above guarantees and the proportions which those

payments bear to each other are not the same as the proportions

which their equity interests in Goldon bear to each other.  The

payments will be of such amounts as are necessary to ensure that

the burden of the payments under the guarantees are shared

between the Company and CITIC HK in the same proportions as

those which their equity interests in Goldon bear to each other.

3. From time to time during the year, the Group executed

guarantees to banks to secure the facilities granted to Shanghai DCH

Jiangnanfeng Co., Ltd. (“Jiangnanfeng”), a company engaged in

the production and selling of chickens and related food products, as

its general working capital.  Jiangnanfeng is 76.77% owned by

Regal Heights Limited (“Regal Heights”, a 60% subsidiary of Dah

Chong Hong Holdings Limited) with the remaining interest held by

individual third parties which are connected to the Group by virtue

only of their substantial shareholding in Jiangnanfeng.  As at 31

December 2000, total facilities granted to Jiangnanfeng was RMB47

million (equivalent to approximately HK$44.2 million) secured by

(i) corporate guarantees given by Dah Chong Hong Group and the

40% partner in Regal Heights amounting to RMB6 million

(equivalent to approximately HK$5.64 million) and RMB4 million

(equivalent to approximately HK$3.76 million) respectively, and

(ii)corporate guarantees given by Dah Chong Hong Group

amounting to RMB37 million (equivalent to approximately HK$34.8

million), in turn the 40% partner in Regal Heights shared 40% of

such liabilities by giving irrevocable letters of credit issued by a

bank in favour of Dah Chong Hong Group.

3.
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4. From time to time during the year, the Company provided

finance to Lucky Zone and its subsidiaries by way of

shareholders’ loan or corporate guarantee.  Lucky Zone and its

subsidiaries are owned by the Company, China International Trust

and Investment Corporation (“CITIC Beijing”) and Mr Larry

Yung Chi Kin in the proportions 60/20/20 and are engaged in the

optical fibre network investment in the PRC. CITIC Beijing is a

substantial shareholder of the Company whereas Mr Larry Yung

Chi Kin is a substantial shareholder and director of the Company.

The shareholders’ loan was made in proportion to the Company’s

shareholding in such companies, with no fixed repayment date

and is non-interest bearing.  The guarantee given by the Company

was a several guarantee proportional to the Company’s

shareholding in such companies.  As at 31 December 2000, the

amount of shareholders’ loan due by Lucky Zone and its

subsidiaries to the Company was HK$744 million whereas the

guarantees executed by the Company to secure the banking

facilities granted to the subsidiaries of Lucky Zone were RMB18

million and US$12.6 million (equivalent to an aggregate amount

of approximately HK$115 million). The Company has also

executed a guarantee up to 60% of the liability of one of the

subsidiaries of Lucky Zone under a lease agreement for leasing

certain equipment at the contract sum of approximately US$15.5

million (equivalent to approximately HK$120.9 million).

5. On 22 August 2000, one of the PRC subsidiaries of the

Company engaged in the optical fibre network investment in the

PRC entered into the following tenancy agreements : -

(a) a tenancy agreement with CITIC Beijing as the landlord in

respect of the premises at Units L101-L110 and LB101-LB107,

Capital Mansion, Beijing, PRC with a floor area of 2,863 square

metres for a term of 6 years commencing from 1 September 2000

at RMB558,285 (equivalent to approximately HK$524,788) per

month inclusive of air-conditioning charges and management fee;

and
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(b) a tenancy agreement with , a 80%

owned subsidiary of CITIC HK,  as the landlord in respect of the

premises at Level 7, CITIC Square, Shanghai, PRC with a floor

area of 1,966 square metres for a term of 6 years commencing

from 1 August 2000. Rentals for the first 3 years will be at

US$25,408 (equivalent to approximately HK$198,182) per month

inclusive of air-conditioning charges and management fee

amounting to US$7,470 (equivalent to approximately HK$58,266).

The said air-conditioning charges and management fee will be

subject to review by the landlord.  Rentals for the fourth to the

sixth year will be negotiated between the parties at the end of the

third year.

The above rentals were reached on normal commercial terms

following arm’s length negotiation with reference to the prevailing

market rent of the respective buildings.

During the year ended 31 December 2000, 

“ ” , a wholly owned subsidiary of CITIC Beijing,

provided management services (“the Services”) to certain PRC

subsidiaries of the Company which were engaged in the optical

fibre network investment.  The PRC subsidiaries paid for the

reasonable costs and expenses incurred by in relation to

the provision of the Services.  Such payment was calculated on the

actual cost basis.  For the year ended 31 December 2000, the total

amount of the Services provided by to the PRC subsidiaries

was RMB6,811,203 (equivalent to approximately HK$6,422,284).
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An independent committee of the board of Directors

(comprising only of independent non-executive Directors) had

reviewed the transactions made during the year ended 31

December 2000 and confirmed that: 

- the Services had been entered into by the PRC subsidiaries in the

ordinary and usual course of their business;

- the Services had been entered into on terms that were fair and

reasonable so far as the shareholders of the Company were

concerned;

- the Services had been entered into in accordance with the terms

of the agreement governing such transactions; and

- the Services had been entered into such that the aggregate

amount for the year ended 31 December 2000 did not exceed 3%

of the net tangible asset value of the Group as disclosed in the

Company’s 1999 annual report (“the Services Cap”).

The auditors of the Company had also confirmed to the board

of Directors that (a) the Services had received the approval of the

Directors; (b) the Services had been entered into in accordance

with the terms of the agreement relating to the transactions; and

(c) the Services had been entered into such that the Services Cap

had not been exceeded.

Directors’ Interests in Securities of the Company

As at 31 December 2000, the following were the interests in

shares of the Company or associated corporations as recorded in

the register required to be kept under section 29 of the Securities

(Disclosure of Interests) Ordinance (the “SDI Ordinance”):
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Number of Shares

Personal Corporate Family Other
interests interests interests interests Total

CITIC Pacific Limited
Larry Yung Chi Kin 400,381,000 400,381,000 
Henry Fan Hung Ling 43,000,000 43,000,000
Vernon Francis Moore 3,200,000 3,200,000

(Note 1) 1

Peter Lee Chung Hing 500,000 500,000
Robert Ernest Adams 550,000 550,000
Patrick W S Chung 550,000 550,000
Hansen Loh Chung Hon 1,050,000 500,000 500,000 1,550,000

(Note 2) 2 (Note 2) 2

André Desmarais 13,800 100,230,000 100,243,800 
(Note 3) 3

Cathay Pacific Airways
Limited
Hansen Loh Chung Hon 450,000 450,000
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Note 1: Deemed interests held by the relevant Director and his family as contingent
beneficiaries of a discretionary trust.
Note 2: The corporate interests and the family interests of the relevant Director duplicate
each other as the 500,000 shares are held through a company in which the relevant
Director and his family are interested.
Note 3: In addition to the aforesaid, the relevant Director is also one of the trustees of a
Canadian discretionary trust which controls Canadian companies which owns 24,000
shares of the Company.

1: 

2: 

500,000

3: 

24,000

29

As at 31 December 2000, none of the Directors has any other

interests in the equity or debt securities of the Company or any

associated corporations (within the meaning of the sdi Ordinance)

which have been entered in the register kept by the Company

pursuant to section 29 of the sdi Ordinance or as otherwise

notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed

Companies.
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Number of Shares

of the Company

Name

CITIC Beijing 632,066,285

CITIC hk 632,066,285

Heedon Corporation 498,424,285

Honpville Corporation 310,988,221

Rockhampton Investments Limited 292,000,000

Bloomfield Enterprises Corp 292,000,000

Earnplex Corporation 292,000,000

8 2

Affluence Limited

Winton Corp

Westminster 

Jetway Corp

Cordia Corporation

Honpville Corporation

Hainsworth Limited

Southpoint Enterprises Inc
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CITIC HK is a substantial shareholder of the Company indirectly

through the following wholly owned subsidiary companies by virtue

of section 8(2) of the sdi Ordinance as follows:

Number of Shares 

Name of Subsidiary Companies of hk$0.40 each

of  CITIC HK 0.40

Affluence Limited 43,266,000

Winton Corp 30,718,000

Westminster 101,960,000

Jetway Corp 22,500,000

Cordia Corporation 32,258,064

Honpville Corporation 310,988,221

Hainsworth Limited 80,376,000

Southpoint Enterprises Inc 10,000,000

Directors’ Report

Substantial Shareholders

As at 31 December 2000, the interests of substantial

shareholders, other than the Directors of the Company, in the

equity securities of the Company as recorded in the register

required to be kept under section 16(1) of the sdi Ordinance are

as follows:

16(1)

Heedon Corporation

Honpville Corporation 

Rockhampton Investments Limited 

Bloomfield Enterprises Corp

Earnplex Corporation
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Each of Affluence Limited, Winton Corp, Westminster,

Jetway Corp, Cordia Corporation, Honpville Corporation,

Hainsworth Limited and Southpoint Enterprises Inc holds the

shares of the Company beneficially.  Accordingly, Honpville

Corporation is a substantial shareholder of the Company.

CITIC Beijing is the direct holding company of CITIC hk.

CITIC HK is the direct holding company of Heedon

Corporation, Hainsworth Limited, Affluence Limited and

Barnsley Investments Limited.  Heedon Corporation is the

direct holding company of Winton Corp, Westminster, Jetway

Corp, Kotron Company Ltd and Honpville Corporation and

Kotron Company Ltd is the direct holding company of Cordia

Corporation.  Barnsley Investments Limited is the direct

holding company of Southpoint Enterprises Inc. Accordingly,

the interests of CITIC Beijing in the Company duplicate the

interests of CITIC HK in the Company.  The interests of CITIC

HK in the Company duplicate the interests in the Company of

all its direct and indirect subsidiary companies as described

above.  The interests of Heedon Corporation in the Company

duplicate the interests in the Company of all its direct and

indirect subsidiary companies as described above.  The

interests of Barnsley Investments Limited in the Company

duplicate the interests in the Company of its direct subsidiary

company as described above and the interests of Kotron

Company Ltd in the Company duplicate the interests in the

Company of its direct subsidiary company as described above.

Rockhampton Investments Limited is a wholly owned

subsidiary company of Bloomfield Enterprises Corp, which in

turn is a wholly owned subsidiary company of Earnplex

Corporation. Accordingly, the interests of Earnplex

Corporation duplicate the interests in the Company of its

Affluence Limited Winton Corp

Westminster Jetway Corp Cordia

Corporation Honpville Corporation 

Ha in swor th  L im i t ed Sou thpo in t

Enterprises Inc

Honpville Corporation

Heedon Corporation Hainsworth

Limited Affluence Limited Barnsley

Investments Limited 

Heedon Corporation Winton Corp

Westminster Jetway Corp Kotron

Company Ltd Honpville Corporation 

Kotron Company Ltd 

Cordia Corporation

Barnsley Investments Limited Southpoint

Enterprises Inc 

Heedon Corporation 

Barnsley Investments Limited 

Kotron Company Ltd 

Rockhampton Investments Limited 

Bloomfield Enterprises Corp 

Earnplex Corporation 

Earnplex Corporation 



Statutory Reports

70

Directors’ Report

direct and indirect subsidiary companies as described above.

Mr Larry Yung Chi Kin is the owner of the entire issued share

capital of Earnplex Corporation.  The interests in the Company

of Rockhampton Investments Limited represent part of the

corporate interests of Mr Larry Yung Chi Kin as mentioned in

the above section of “Directors’ Interests in Securities of the

Company”.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Shares

During the year ended 31 December 2000, the Company made

the following repurchases of its own shares on the Stock

Exchange for the purpose of enhancing its earnings per share: 

Earnplex Corporation 

Rockhampton Investments

Limited 

Price Per Share Aggregate

Price Paid

Number of Shares Highest Lowest

Repurchased HK$ million 

Month/Year HK$ HK$

January 2000 1,041,000 33.10 32.90 34

March 2000 650,000 41.80 41.40 27

April 2000 500,000 36.60 36.50 18

September 2000 13,612,000 37.20 30.70 453

October 2000 8,064,000 33.60 28.80 254

November 2000 7,500,000 33.20 26.55 218

These repurchased shares were cancelled upon repurchase

and accordingly the issued share capital of the Company was

reduced by the nominal value of these shares.  The premium

payable on repurchase was charged against retained profit.

An amount equivalent to the nominal value of the shares

cancelled of HK$13 million was transferred from retained

profit to capital redemption reserve.
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Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor its

subsidiary companies has purchased or sold any of the

Company’s shares during the year ended 31 December 2000

and the Company has not redeemed any of its shares during

the year ended 31 December 2000.

The Company adopted the CITIC Pacific Share Incentive

Plan 2000 (“the Plan”) on 31 May 2000, pursuant to which

the Board may invite selected Employees (as defined in the

rules of the Plan) to subscribe for options over the Company’s

shares on payment of HK$1 per acceptance of such invitation.

The subscription price is to be determined by the Board and

will not be lower than 100% of the average of the closing

prices of the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange as

stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the

five trading days immediately preceding the date of grant

(which is deemed to be the date of the offer) on which there

were dealings in the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange.

No such invitation has been made as at 31 December 2000.

Service Contracts

As at 31 December 2000, there were no service contracts which

were not determinable by the employer within one year

without payment of compensation (other than statutory

compensation) between any company in the Group and any

Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming Annual

General Meeting.
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Arrangements for Acquisition of Shares or

Debentures

Save as the aforesaid CITIC Pacific Share Incentive Plan 2000,

at no time during the year was the Company or any of its

subsidiary companies a party or parties to any arrangement to

enable the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by

means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the

Company or any other body corporate.

Other Matters

The following are particulars of other matters which may be

material for the appreciation of the state of the Company’s

affairs by its members:-

On 5 February 2001, a wholly owned subsidiary of the

Company, Broadview Investments Holdings Ltd.

(“Broadview”) had entered into a share purchase agreement

with, inter alia, The Dairy Farm Company, Limited (“Dairy

Farm”), pursuant to which Broadview had agreed to acquire

Sims Trading Company Limited (“Sims Trading”) from Dairy

Farm for HK$450 million (of which the majority represents net

assets such as inventory and accounts receivable).  Sims

Trading wholesales, distributes and markets foods, beverages

and household products in Hong Kong, Mainland China and

Macau.  The transaction was completed on 28 February 2001.

Auditors

The accounts for the year have been audited by

PricewaterhouseCoopers who shall retire and, being eligible,

shall offer themselves for re-appointment.  

PricewaterhouseCoopers replaced Price Waterhouse in 1999

following the merger of Price Waterhouse with Coopers &

Lybrand.  

72

Broadv i ew  Inve s tmen t s

Holdings Ltd. ( Broadview ) (

) ( )

Broadview

( ) 

(

)
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Corporate Governance

During the year, the Company was in compliance with the

Code of Best Practice as set out in the Rules Governing the

Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange.

By Order of the Board

Larry Yung Chi Kin Chairman

Hong Kong, 19 March 2001
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Consolidated Profit and Loss Account

for the year ended 31 December 2000
Note

in HK$ million 2000 1999

Turnover 2 16,008 26,424

Profit from Consolidated Activities 3 2,445 2,259

Share of Profits less Losses of 

Associated Companies 1,939 2,223

Net Finance Charges 4 (614) (1,090)

Profit before Taxation 3,770 3,392

Taxation 5 (229) (322)

Profit for the Year 3,541 3,070

Minority Interests (111) (104)

Profit Attributable to Shareholders 6 3,430 2,966

Dividends 7 (1,871) (5,904)

Transfer to Reserves 20 (4) (4)

Earnings per Share (HK$) 8 1.56 1.39



Consolidated Balance Sheet
as at 31 December 2000

–
–

Note

in HK$ million 2000 1999

Fixed Assets 11 13,433 11,916

Associated Companies 13 26,286 23,167

Investments 14 9,479 14,560

Current Assets

Amount due from a substantial 
shareholder 15 567 –

Properties held for sale 11 341 341
Inventories 16 1,521 1,307
Listed investment 3,144 –
Debtors, accounts receivable, 
deposits and prepayments 17 3,062 2,355

Cash and bank deposits 5,201 8,044

13,836 12,047
Current Liabilities

Bank loans, other loans and overdrafts
– secured 261 191
– unsecured 2,491 1,761

Creditors, accounts payable, 
deposits and accruals 18 2,487 2,011

Provision for taxation 119 79
Proposed final dividend 1,427 1,224

6,785 5,266

Net Current Assets 7,051 6,781

56,249 56,424

Financed by :

Share Capital 19 878 851

Reserves 20 40,300 37,327

Shareholders’ Funds 41,178 38,178

Long Term Borrowings 21 12,957 16,611

Deferred Taxation 22 237 254

Minority Interests 1,877 1,381

56,249 56,424

Larry Yung Chi Kin Director

Henry Fan Hung Ling Director
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Balance Sheet
as at 31 December 2000

Note

in HK$ million 2000 1999

Fixed Assets 11 54 68

Subsidiary Companies 12 42,384 35,869

Associated Companies 13 3,452 2,281

Current Assets
Debtors, accounts receivable, 

deposits and prepayments 17 172 192
Cash and bank deposits 3,596 7,075

3,768 7,267

Current Liabilities
Bank loans, other loans and overdrafts

– unsecured - 281
Creditors, accounts payable, 
deposits and accruals 18 143 238

Proposed final dividend 1,427 1,224

1,570 1,743

Net Current Assets 2,198 5,524

48,088 43,742
Financed by :

Share Capital 19 878 851

Reserves 20 35,577 30,891

Shareholders’ Funds 36,455 31,742

Long Term Borrowings 21 11,633 12,000

48,088 43,742

Larry Yung Chi Kin Director

Henry Fan Hung Ling Director

–
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended 31 December 2000

in HK$ million 2000 1999

Net Cash Inflow from Consolidated Activities

(note a) 1,048 1,149

Returns on Investments and 

Servicing of Finance

Dividend income from associated companies 738 1,252

Income from investments 1,562 1,403

Interest received 617 93

Interest paid (1,380) (1,310)

Dividends paid (1,668) (5,744)

Net Cash Outflow from Returns on 

Investments and Servicing of Finance (131) (4,306)

Taxation

Hong Kong profits tax and overseas tax paid (120) (88)

Investing Activities

Purchase of subsidiary companies (net of cash 

and cash equivalents acquired) (note b) (1,611) –

Purchase of additional interests in a 

subsidiary company (61) –

Purchase of fixed assets (1,639) (380)

Investment in associated companies (1,131) (114)

Increase in investments (248) (138)

Proceeds on disposal of fixed assets 34 38

Proceeds on disposal of interest in 

an associated company 20 12,781

Proceeds on disposal of investments 1,770 2,335

a

b
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in HK$ million 2000 1999

Increase in amount due from a substantial 

shareholder (567) -

Decrease in amount due to a previous 

shareholder of a subsidiary company (45) -

Loans to associated companies (685) (633)

Net Cash (Outflow)/ Inflow from 

Investing Activities (4,163) 13,889

Net Cash (Outflow)/ Inflow before 

Financing (3,366) 10,644

Financing (note c)

Repurchase of shares (1,004) -

Issue of shares 4,038 -

Expenses on issue of shares (97) -

New borrowings 626 122

Repayment of loans (4,053) (3,536)

Increase in minority interests 443 2

Net Cash Outflow from Financing (47) (3,412)

(Decrease) / Increase in Cash and 

Cash Equivalents (3,413) 7,232

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

at 1 January 7,543 301

Effect of Foreign Exchange Rate 

Changes (3) 10

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

at 31 December 4,127 7,543

Analysis of the Balances of Cash and 

Cash Equivalents

Cash and bank deposits 5,201 8,044

Bank loans , other loans and overdrafts 

(note d) (1,074) (501)

4,127 7,543

c

d
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Notes to Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

a Reconciliation of profit from consolidated activities              

to net cash inflow from consolidated activities

in HK$ million 2000 1999

Profit from consolidated activities after net 

finance charges 1,831 1,169

Net interest expense 568 1,053

Income from investments (1,664) (1,493)

Depreciation and amortisation 452 356

Loss on disposal of fixed assets 3 6

Net gain from investments (111) (225)

Provision for diminution in value of 

unlisted investments 1 –

(Increase)/decrease in inventories (96) 191

Increase in debtors, accounts receivable,

deposits and prepayments   (290) (87)

Increase in creditors, accounts payable

and accruals 326 217

Effect of foreign exchange rates 28 (38)

Net cash inflow from consolidated activities 1,048 1,149



b Purchase of subsidiary companies

in HK$ million 2000

Net assets acquired

Fixed assets 59

Inventories 118

Accounts receivable and prepayments 143

Cash and bank deposits 17

Bank overdrafts (7)

Creditors and accrued charges (202)

Deferred taxation (1)

Minority interests (2)

125

Less: Interest in associated companies (4)

Goodwill 1,500

1,621

Satisfied by:

Cash paid 1,621

80
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Notes to Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

Analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents 

in respect of the purchase of subsidiary companies

in HK$ million 2000

Cash consideration 1,621

Cash and bank deposits acquired (17)

Bank overdrafts acquired 7

Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of the 

purchase of subsidiary companies 1,611

The subsidiary companies acquired during the year contributed HK$74

million to the Group’s net operating cash inflows, received HK$1 million in

respect of the net returns on investments and servicing of finance, paid HK$1

million in respect of taxation, received HK$2 million from financing activities

and utilised HK$102 million for investing activities.
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c Analysis of changes in financing during the year

Share Capital
(including premium) Long term borrowings Minority interests

in HK$ million 2000 1999 2000 1999 2000 1999

Balance at 1 January 21,732 21,732 18,062 21,476 1,381 1,269

Issue of shares, net of expenses 3,941 - - - - -

Repurchase of shares (1,004 ) - - - - -

Premium on shares repurchased
paid  out of retained profits 991 - - - - -

Effect of foreign exchange 
difference - - - - 3 6

Net cash (outflow)/inflow from  
financing - - (3,427 ) (3,414) 443 2

Minority interests’ share of  
retained profit for the year - - - - 111 104

Purchase of additional interests  
in a subsidiary company - - - - (61) -

Balance at 31 December 25,660 21,732    14,635 18,062 1,877 1,381

d Reconciliation of the balance of cash and cash equivalents 

in respect of bank loans, other loans and overdrafts

in HK$ million 2000 1999

Bank loans, other loans and overdrafts 2,752 1,952

Bank loans, other loans and overdrafts over three 

months to maturity (1,678) (1,451)

Bank loans, other loans and overdrafts within three 

months to maturity 1,074 501

c

d 



82

Consolidated Statement of Recognised Gains and Losses

for the year ended 31 December 2000
Note

in HK$ million 2000 1999

Revaluation Surplus on Investment 
Properties 20 237 385

Share of Exchange Reserve from 

an Associated Company 20 491 -

Exchange Differences Arising on 

Translation of Subsidiary 

Companies and Associated 

Companies 20 11 (9)

Net Gains Not Recognised in 

the Profit and Loss Account 739 376

Profit Attributable to Shareholders 20 3,430 2,966

Total Recognised Gains and Losses 4,169 3,342

Premium on Shares Issued 

during the year 20 3,901 -

Repurchase of Shares 20 (991) -

Dividends 7 (1,871) (5,904)

Reserves Released 20 (448) (1,262)

(Goodwill Written Off against  

Reserves)/Reserves on Acquisition 20 (1,787) 103

2,973 (3,721)

Statutory Reports
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Notes to The Accounts

for the year ended 31 December 2000

1 Significant Accounting Policies

a BASIS OF PREPARATION

The accounts have been prepared in accordance with accounting

principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and comply with

accounting standards issued by the Hong Kong Society of

Accountants. The recognition of exchange differences on certain long-

term liabilities in CITIC Pacific’s associated company Cathay Pacific

Airways Limited (“Cathay Pacific”) does not comply with Hong Kong

SSAP 11 but does comply with International Accounting Standards

(“IAS”) and Cathay Pacific’s policy is explained in accounting policy

No. 1(o) below.

The accounts are prepared under the historical cost convention as

modified by the revaluation of investment properties as explained in

the accounting policies set out below.

b BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated accounts incorporate the accounts of the Company

and all its subsidiary companies made up to the balance sheet date.

The results of subsidiary companies acquired or disposed of during

the year are included as from the effective dates of acquisition or up to

the effective dates of disposal respectively.

c GOODWILL AND CAPITAL RESERVE

Goodwill represents the excess of purchase consideration over the fair

values ascribed to the net assets of subsidiary companies and

associated companies acquired and is written off to reserves in the

year of acquisition or amortised over a period no longer than its

estimated useful life to the Group.

Where the fair values of net assets of subsidiary companies and

associated companies exceed the purchase consideration, such

differences, being discounts on acquisition, are taken to capital reserve

in the year of acquisition.

d SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

Investments in subsidiary companies are carried at cost less provision.

1

a

o

b

c

d
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Notes to the Accounts

1 Significant Accounting Policies continued 1
e ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

Associated companies are companies, other than subsidiary companies,

in which the Group holds not more than 50 per cent of their equity

share capital for the long term and can exercise significant influence in

their management.

The consolidated profit and loss account includes the Group’s share

of the results of associated companies for the year, and the consolidated

balance sheet includes the Group’s share of net assets of the associated

companies, after attributing fair values to the net assets at the date of

acquisition.

In the Company’s balance sheet the investments in associated

companies are stated at cost less provision.  The results of associated

companies are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends

received and receivable.

f DEPRECIATION

All fixed assets except investment properties, properties held for

development and construction in progress are carried at cost less

accumulated depreciation.

Changes in the value of investment properties reflecting market

conditions, depreciation and other factors are incorporated in the

annual accounts on the basis set out in note 1(g).  

Freehold land is not amortised.  Leasehold land is depreciated over

the remaining portion of the relevant lease.  

Amortisation of vehicular tunnel (including land and buildings) is

provided for over the franchise period on the basis of a sinking fund

calculation whereby annual amounts compounded at the rate of 7%

per annum will equal the net cost of the tunnel.

Other fixed assets are depreciated at rates sufficient to write off

their cost or valuation over their estimated useful lives on a straight

line basis at the following annual rates:

Buildings 2%-4% or the remaining 

lease period of the land

e

f

1(g)

7%

– 2% - 4%
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Other fixed assets, comprising 

telecommunications equipment,  

traffic equipment, cargo lighters, computer 

installations, motor vehicles, plant and 

machinery, furniture, fixtures and equipment                         10%-25%

g INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings in respect of

which construction work and development have been completed and

which are held for their investment potential.

Investment properties held on leases with unexpired periods greater

than twenty years are valued at intervals of not more than three years

by independent valuers; in each of the intervening years, valuations are

undertaken by professionally qualified personnel.  The valuations are

on an open market value basis related to individual properties and

separate values are not attributed to land and buildings.  The

valuations are incorporated in the annual accounts.  Increases in

valuation are credited to the investment property revaluation reserve;

decreases are first set off against increases on earlier valuations on a

portfolio basis and thereafter are charged to operating profit.

Investment properties held on leases with unexpired periods of

twenty years or less are depreciated over the remaining portion of the

leases.

Upon the disposal of an investment property, the relevant portion of

the revaluation reserve realised in respect of previous valuations is

released from the investment property revaluation reserve to the profit

and loss account.

h PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT

Properties held for development consist of investments in land for

future development and buildings under construction and properties

under development pending any positive intention either to retain them

for investment purposes or to sell them for proceeds.  The investments

are stated at cost less provision for diminution in value.

–

10% - 25%

g

h
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1 Significant Accounting Policies continued 1

i CAPITALISATION OF DEVELOPMENT COSTS

Property development expenditure, inclusive of interest and

professional fees, is capitalised as cost of development.

Borrowing costs incurred on assets under development that take 

a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale

are capitalised into the carrying value of the assets under development.

The capitalisation rate applied to funds borrowed for the development

of the assets is based on the attributable cost of funds to the Group.

All other borrowing costs are charged to the profit and loss account

in the period in which they are incurred. 

j REVENUE RECOGNITION

(i) Motor vehicles

Revenue arising from the sale of motor vehicles is recognised

when the registration document is issued or on delivery of

motor vehicles, whichever is earlier, which are taken to be the

point in time when the customer has accepted the goods and the

related risks and rewards of ownership.  Revenue excludes any

government taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

(ii)Sales of properties under development and properties held for

sale 

Income from sales of properties under development is recognised

when the properties developed for sale are sold in advance of

completion and the outcome of projects can be ascertained with

reasonable certainty by reference to the construction progress.

Profit is recognised over the course of the development and is

computed in each year as a proportion of the total estimated

profit of the development. The proportion used is calculated by

reference to the proportion of construction costs incurred to

date to the estimated total construction costs to completion of

the development and the extent of the sales proceeds received,

after taking into account due allowance for contingencies.

Income from properties held for sale is recognised at the 

date when sale agreement is signed.

i

j  

(i)

(

) 

(ii)
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(iii) Income from co-operative joint venture

Where the Group has been guaranteed a minimum rate of

return on its investment in co-operative joint ventures, income

is accrued at the minimum rate of return, and any return in

excess of the minimum is recognised in the year in which it is

received, or becomes receivable.

Other income or dividend from co-operative joint venture

is recognised when the right to receive is established.

Income from disposal of co-operative joint venture is

recognised at the date when sale agreement is signed.

(iv) Other goods

Revenue arising from the sale of other goods is recognised on

the delivery of goods to customers. Revenue is determined

after deduction of any trade discounts.

(v) Rendering of services

Commission income and revenue arising from the rendering of

repairing services are recognised when the goods concerned

are sold to customers and when the relevant work is

completed respectively.

(vi) Revenue from the provision of telecommunications services is

recognised upon delivery of the services.

(vii)Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive the

dividend is established.

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)
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1 Significant Accounting Policies continued 1

k PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

Properties held for sale are classified under current assets and are

stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

l INVESTMENTS

Co-operative joint ventures in the People’s Republic of China are

stated at cost (net of capital repayment) less provision for permanent

diminution in value or where appropriate, amortised over a period no

longer than its estimated useful life to the Group.

Interest in other listed and unlisted investments held for the long

term are stated at cost less provision for permanent diminution in

value.  The carrying amounts of individual listed investments are

reviewed at each balance sheet date to assess whether the fair values

have declined below the carrying amounts.  When a decline other

than temporary has occurred, the carrying amount of such securities

should be reduced to its fair value. The amount of the reduction is

recognised as an expense in the profit and loss account.

Interest in other listed investments not held for the long term are

carried at fair value. At each balance sheet date, the net unrealised

gains or losses arising from the changes in fair value of such

investments are recognised in the profit and loss account. Profits or

losses on disposal of such investments, representing the difference

between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amounts, are

recognised in the profit and loss account as they arise.

m OPERATING LEASES

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of

assets remain with the leasing company are accounted for as

operating leases. Rentals payable and receivable under operating

leases are accounted for on a straight line basis over the respective

periods of the leases.

k

l

m
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n INVENTORIES

Inventories comprising mainly motor vehicles, spare parts, electrical

appliances, food, trading items and steels are valued at the lower of

cost and net realisable value.  Cost represents the actual cost of

purchase and is calculated on the first-in first-out, specific

identification or weighted average basis as appropriate.  Net realisable

value is determined by reference to the sale proceeds of items sold in

the ordinary course of business after the balance sheet date, and in

other cases, to management’s estimates based on prevailing market

conditions and net replacement costs.

o FOREIGN CURRENCIES 

The accounts of subsidiary companies and associated companies

expressed in foreign currencies are translated at the rates of exchange

ruling at the balance sheet date.  Exchange differences arising are

dealt with as a movement in reserves.

Transactions arising in foreign currencies during the year are

translated into Hong Kong dollars at rates ruling at the

transaction dates.  Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign

currencies are translated into Hong Kong dollars at market rates

ruling at the balance sheet date.  Exchange differences arising in

these cases are dealt with in the profit and loss account with the

following exception:

n

o

S
T

A
T

U
T

O
R

Y
 

R
E

P
O

R
T

S



Statutory Reports

Notes to the Accounts

90

1 Significant Accounting Policies continued 1

Cathay Pacific prepares its accounts on the basis that

borrowings and leasing obligations relating to aircraft and related

equipment are so arranged that repayments are covered by the

anticipated future operating cash flows in the related currencies in

order to reduce exposure to exchange rate fluctuations.  Any

unrealised exchange differences on these borrowings, leasing

obligations and currency derivatives, and on related security

deposits in Cathay Pacific’s balance sheet, are recognised directly

in equity via the Statement of Recognised Gains and Losses.

These exchange differences are included in the profit and loss

account as an adjustment to revenue in the same period or periods

during which the hedged transaction affects the net profit and loss.

As mentioned in 1(a) this complies with IAS but does not comply

with Hong Kong SSAP 11 which would have required the

exchange differences to pass through the profit and loss account.

The directors of Cathay Pacific consider the adopted treatment

gives the accounts a true and fair view and the auditors of Cathay

Pacific agree.  

p DEFERRED TAXATION

Deferred taxation is accounted for at the current tax rate in respect

of material timing differences between profit as computed for

taxation purposes and profit as stated in the accounts to the extent

that a liability or asset is expected to be payable or receivable in

the foreseeable future.

1 a

p
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Group

in HK$ million 2000 1999

Sale of goods 10,535 8,430

Sale of investments

– interest in power generation in 

Hong Kong 1,552 12,781

Services rendered to customers 679 447

Dividend income and income from 

co-operative joint ventures 1,664 3,808

Toll income 508 490

Others 1,070 468

16,008 26,424

–

2 Turnover

The principal activity of the Company is holding its subsidiary

companies and the principal activities of its principal subsidiary

companies are set out in Note 27 to the accounts.

Turnover of the Group comprises the total invoiced value of

goods supplied net of government taxes where applicable, and

services rendered to customers, gross proceeds from sale of

investments and properties, amounts received and receivable in

respect of dividends, income from co-operative joint ventures, toll

income, gross property rental and godown and cold storage

income, analysed as follows : 

2

27
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1999

22,520

363

1,282

9

31

356

2

80

164

254

183

(68)

115

80

-

2000

11,877 

449

1,462 

10

34 

452

2

86

252

347

212

(63)

149

95

225

3

–

–

–

–

3 Profit from Consolidated Activities
Group 

in HK$ million

The profit from consolidated activities is arrived at 

after charging : 

Cost of sales (note)

– including cost of inventories of 

HK$8,762 million(1999 : 

HK$6,802 million)

Distribution costs (note)

Other operating costs (note)

Auditors’ remuneration

Contributions to staff retirement schemes

Depreciation and amortisation

Management fee payable to China 

International Trust & Investment

Corporation Hong Kong (Holdings) Limited

Operating lease rentals

– land and buildings

note: 
Included in cost of sales, distribution costs and 
other operating costs are staff costs of HK$1,078million 
(1999 : HK$991 million)

and after crediting :

Dividend income from listed investments

Dividend income from unlisted investments

Rental income from

– investment properties

Gross income

Less: Direct outgoings

– other operating leases

Unrealised net gain from listed investments
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5 Taxation
Hong Kong profits tax has been calculated at the rate of 16%
(1999 : 16%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year.
Overseas taxation has been calculated on the estimated assessable
profit for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.

Group 

in HK$ million

Company and subsidiary companies :

Hong Kong profits tax
Overseas taxation
Deferred taxation (Note 22)

Associated companies :
Hong Kong profits tax
Overseas taxation
Deferred taxation

1999

66
33

(21)
78

94
52
98

244

322

2000

97
49
(8)

138

36
62
(7)

91

229

5

16% ( : 16%) 

4 Net Finance Charges

Group
W&K?O@K?hf

?O&@@@@@@@@?he
?W2@Y?e@?hg
?*>@@@@@@@@@hf
?N@Ye?@
?J@@@@@@@@@?hf
?7Y?e@?
J@@@@@@@@@@?hf

?O&Ye?@
@@@@@@@@@@@@@?hf
?W(Y@@X?
@0YJ(R'6K?hg

?@@?e?7H?V4@@hg
?@

?@@@@@@@@@@@@?h
J@X?e?@e?W5?h
7R'@@@@@@@?7H?h

?J5??@e@?@HJ5he
?7H?7@@@@@@?7Hhe
J5?J@??@?W@T5?he
7H?@@@@@@(R@H?he

?J@?f@?@Y:5hf
?7@@@@@@@@@@@Hhf
J(M?@?eW(M?@?hf
7He@?@@(Ye@?hf
@?fV@Y??C5?hf
@@@@@@@@@@@@H?hf
@MhI@hg

in HK$ million

Interest expense
Bank loans and overdrafts wholly 

repayable within five years

Bank loans not wholly repayable 
within five years

Less : Amount capitalised

Other loans wholly repayable 
within five years

Other loans not wholly repayable 
within five years

Interest income

Other finance charges

1999

1,063

16
(95)
984

204

58

1,246
(193)

1,053
37

1,090

2000

984

64

(161)
887

212

58

1,157
(589)
568

46
614

4
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7 Dividends

in HK$ million

2000 Interim dividend paid : HK$0.20 

(1999 : HK$0.20) per share

2000 Final dividend proposed : HK$0.65

(1999 : HK$0.55) per share

Special dividend paid : HK$ nil 

(1999 : HK$2.00) per share

Dividends per share (HK$)

8  Earnings per Share

The calculation of earnings per share is based on profit

attributable to shareholders of HK$3,430million (1999 : HK$2,966

million), and on the weighted average number of 2,204,468,971

shares for  the year (1999 : 2,127,367,160 shares).

1999

426

1,224

4,254

5,904

2.75

2000

444

1,427

-

1,871

0.85

7

0.20

0.20

0.65

0.55

2.00

8

2,204,468,971 

2,127,367,160 

6 Profit Attributable to Shareholders

The Group’s profit attributable to shareholders is dealt with in the

accounts of the Company to the extent of HK$3,647 million

(1999 : HK$2,673 million). 

6



95

9 Directors’ Emoluments

Group

in HK$ million 2000 1999

Fees 1.8 1.5

Salaries 11.2 7.2

Bonuses 67.3 57.5

80.3 66.2

The Directors’emoluments are analysed as follows :

Number of directors

2000 1999

Emoluments Bands
HK$ 0 - HK$1,000,000 8 7
HK$ 1,000,001 - HK$1,500,000 2 -
HK$ 1,500,001 - HK$2,000,000 2 -
HK$ 2,500,001 - HK$3,000,000 - 1
HK$ 3,500,001 - HK$4,000,000 1 -
HK$ 4,500,001 - HK$5,000,000 1 1
HK$ 5,000,001 - HK$5,500,000 - 1
HK$ 7,000,001 - HK$7,500,000 1 -
HK$ 10,000,001 - HK$10,500,000 - 1
HK$ 11,000,001 - HK$11,500,000 1 -
HK$ 12,000,001 - HK$12,500,000 - 1
HK$ 13,000,001 - HK$13,500,000 1 -
HK$ 14,000,001 - HK$14,500,000 - 1
HK$ 15,000,001 - HK$15,500,000 1 -
HK$ 16,500,001 - HK$17,000,000 - 1
HK$ 18,000,001 - HK$18,500,000 1 -

Emoluments paid to independent non-executive directors during

the year amounted to HK$0.8 million (1999 : HK$0.8 million).

The five highest paid individuals of the Group during the year

were also directors and their emoluments are reflected in the

analysis presented above. 

9

0 1,000,000
1,000,001 1,500,000
1,500,001 2,000,000
2,500,001 3,000,000
3,500,001 4,000,000
4,500,001 5,000,000
5,000,001 5,500,000
7,000,001 7,500,000
10,000,001 10,500,000
11,000,001 11,500,000
12,000,001 12,500,000
13,000,001 13,500,000
14,000,001 14,500,000
15,000,001 15,500,000
16,500,001 17,000,000
18,000,001 18,500,000
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10 Retirement Benefits

In 2000, The CITIC Group Retirement Plan (“the Plan”),

formerly known as the Dah Chong Hong Holdings Limited

Amalgamated Provident Fund, was set up under a Trust Deed to

provide retirement benefits for employees of CITIC Pacific

Limited and its subsidiary companies including the Dah Chong

Hong Group (“DCH”) and New Hong Kong Tunnel Company

Limited (“NHKTC”). The Plan is a defined contribution scheme

and is registered under the Occupational Retirement Schemes

Ordinance and has obtained an exemption certificate under the

Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The Group has

appointed an independent trustee who in turn appoints the

investment manager and plan administrator to manage the Plan

in accordance with the Trust Deed and Rules. Employees are

offered a choice of investments and Trustee issues statements to

members of the Plan twice a year.

A CITIC Group Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF

Scheme”) has also been set up in accordance with the stipulations

of the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority to offer a

choice to employees who opt not to join the Plan. Eligibility of

membership of the MPF Scheme is identical to that of the Plan and

new employees are offered the choice of joining the Plan or the

MPF Scheme. An independent service provider has been appointed

for the MPF Scheme. 

Employees of NHKTC are also offered a third option to join a

retirement scheme operated by NHKTC. This NHKTC scheme is a

defined contribution scheme and previously contained a defined

benefit element in the case where the relevant employee deceases

or becomes totally and permanently disabled under employment.

With effect from October 2000, the relevant benefit has been

removed and is now covered by a separate group life and total

permanent disability insurance policy.

10
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Contributions to the defined contribution schemes represent

amounts payable at rates specified in the terms of the schemes.

Assets of the schemes are held separately in funds under the

control of the respective Trustees. With the exception of the NHKTC

scheme, forfeited contributions are credited to the remaining

members
,
accounts of the scheme in proportion to their respective

balances. Forfeited contributions of NHKTC are to be used at the

absolute discretion of the Trustee for settlement of all or part of

the future contributions payable by NHKTC.

There are two defined benefit schemes in existence in the

Group
,
s subsidiary companies. For the defined benefit scheme in

Japan, members
,
benefits are determined based on the employees

,

latest month of pay and length of service. Part of the portion for

the employees is funded through a contract with an insurance

company which acts as Trustee. The remaining portion for the

employees together with the portion for the directors of the

Group
,
s subsidiary company in Japan are unfunded and have

been provided for in the accounts.

A subsidiary company of the Group also operates a defined

benefit scheme in Hong Kong. It is a closed scheme for existing

members at the time of acquisition and does not admit new

members. The scheme contains a defined death and total

permanent disability benefit for eligible members of which the

benefit payable has been underwritten by an insurance  policy.
S
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11 Fixed Assets

a GROUP

Cost or valuation

At 1 January 2000 5,374 3,256 262 1,983 2,924 13,799

Exchange adjustments (29) (3) - - 5 (27)

Additions/cost adjustment (24) 18 8 - 1,710 1,712

Disposals (1) (9) - - (112) (122)

Revaluation surplus (Note 20a) 211 - - - - 211

Reclassification - 66 - - (66) -

Acquisition of subsidiary companies - - - - 82 82

At 31 December 2000 5,531 3,328 270 1,983 4,543 15,655

Accumulated depreciation

At 1 January 2000 - 422 - 382 1,079 1,883

Exchange adjustments - (1) - - - (1)

Charge for the year - 71 - 54 256 381

Written back on disposals - (2) - - (62) (64)

Acquisition of subsidiary companies - - - - 23 23

At 31 December 2000 - 490 - 436 1,296 2,222

Net book value

At 31 December 2000 5,531 2,838 270 1,547 3,247 13,433

At 31 December 1999 5,374 2,834 262 1,601 1,845 11,916

The analysis of cost or valuation of the above assets is as follows :

At cost - 3,328 270 1,983 4,543 10,124

At professional valuation - 2000 5,531 - - - - 5,531

5,531 3,328 270 1,983 4,543 15,655

note :
(i) Interest capitalised in fixed assets other than investment properties amounts to HK$35 million 
(1999 : HK$35 million).

(ii) Other fixed assets comprise traffic equipment, cargo lighters, computer installations,
telecommunications equipment, optical fibre network under construction, motor vehicles, plant and
machinery, furniture, fixtures and equipment.
(iii) Optical fibre network under construction is stated at cost, including borrowing cost capitalised.
(iv) Fixed assets with net book value of  HK$1,554 million (1999 : HK$1,609 million) have been pledged to
secure bank loans and other loans of a subsidiary company totalling HK$375 million (1999 : HK$605
million).

Investment
properties Total

in HK$ million

Self-used
properties

Properties
held for

development
Vehicular

tunnel
Others

(note ii)

11

a

20a

–

i

ii

iii

iv



b COMPANY

Motor vehicles,

equipment,

furniture 

and  fixtures 

in HK$ million

Cost
At 1 January 2000 91  
Additions 3 
Cost adjustment (10)

At 31 December 2000 84

Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2000 23 
Charge for the year 7

At 31 December 2000 30

Net book value
At 31 December 2000 54

At 31 December 1999 68

c The tenure of the properties of the Group is as follows:
Properties

Investment Self-used held for

properties properties development Total

in HK$ million

Leasehold properties held in Hong Kong

- Long term lease 657 31 - 688

- Medium term lease 4,625 2,118 270 7,013

- Short term lease - 83 - 83

Properties held overseas

- Freehold 249 231 - 480

- Medium term lease - 865 - 865

5,531 3,328 270 9,129

99
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11 Fixed Assets continued

d Property valuation

The Group’s investment properties have been independently

revalued on an open market value basis as at 31 December 2000.

The details of the independent qualified valuers are as follows :

Properties located in Valuers 

Hong Kong Knight Frank 

Japan Tekko Building Co., Limited

e Fixed assets and properties held for sale under current assets of

the Group let under operating leases to generate rental income are

as follows :
Other Fixed Properties

Investment Self-used fixed assets held for

properties properties assets total sale

in HK$ million

Cost or valuation 5,531 28 173 5,732 316

Accumulated depreciation - (3) (104) (107) -

Net book value at 

31 December 2000 5,531 25 69 5,625 316

12 Subsidiary Companies

Company 

in HK$ million 2000 1999

Unlisted shares, at cost less amounts 

written off 169 169

Amounts due by subsidiary companies 47,963 44,659

Amounts due to subsidiary companies (5,748) (8,959)

42,384 35,869

Particulars of the principal subsidiary companies are shown in

Note 27.

11

d

e

12

27



13 Associated Companies

Group 

in HK$ million 2000 1999

Share of net assets other than goodwill 18,955 16,587

Discount on acquisitions 404 695

19,359 17,282

Loans due from associated companies

(note b) 7,477 7,478

Loans due to associated companies 

(note b) (550) (1,593)

26,286 23,167

Investment at cost:

Unlisted shares 6,594 5,595

Shares listed in Hong Kong 8,591 8,591

15,185 14,186

Market value of listed shares 12,375 11,902

Company 

in HK$ million 2000 1999

Investment at cost :

Unlisted shares 337 337

Shares listed in Hong Kong 931 931

1,268 1,268

Loans due from associated companies 2,720 2,593

Loans due to associated companies (536) (1,580)

3,452 2,281

Market value of listed shares 1,031 992

13  
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13 Associated Companies continued

Dividend income from associated companies during the year is as

follows :

Group 

in HK$ million 2000 1999

Listed associated companies 559 825

Unlisted associated companies 258 366

817 1,191

note :
(a) Included in associated companies are Hong Kong Resort Company Limited (“HKR”) and
Western Harbour Tunnel Company Limited (“WHTCL”) whose year ends are 31 March and
31 July respectively which are not coterminous with the Group.  The results of HKR and
WHTCL have been equity accounted for based on their management accounts for the period
from 1 January 2000 to 31 December 2000.

(b) Loans due from associated companies and loans due to associated companies are
interest bearing at market rates except an amount of approximately HK$31 million loans to
associated companies, which are non-interest bearing.  These loans have no fixed
repayment terms.

(c) Particulars of the principal associated companies are shown in Note 28.

Statutory Reports

Notes to the Accounts

102

(a)

(b)

(c)

13  
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14 Investments

Group

in HK$ million 2000 1999

Co-operative joint ventures

Unlisted investments, at cost 7,298 7,235

Amounts due by co-operative 

joint ventures 2,148 1,943

9,446 9,178

Less: Amortisation (391) (320)

9,055 8,858

Listed investments, at cost

Shares listed in Hong Kong 199 5,029

Shares listed outside Hong Kong 210 611

409 5,640

Less: Provision (43) -

366 5,640

Unlisted investments

Shares, at cost 64 55

Add: Advances made 35 47

99 102

Less: Provision (38) (37)

61 65

Less: Advances received (3) (3)

58 62

9,479 14,560

Market value of listed shares 321 5,014

Particulars of the principal co-operative joint ventures are shown in

Note 29 @@f
@@f
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15 Amount due from a Substantial Shareholder

This unsecured and interest bearing amount due from China

International Trust and Investment Corporation (“CITIC Beijing”) is

repayable within 1 year. It will be set off against any new capital

contribution required of the Group to Guoan as a result of the

injection of new assets by CITIC Beijing.

16 Inventories

At 31 December 2000, the carrying amount of inventories that are

carried at net realisable value amounted to HK$437 million (1999 :

HK$431 million).

17 Debtors, Accounts Receivable, Deposits and

Prepayments

Group Company 

in HK$ million 2000 1999 2000 1999

Trade debtors

-Within 1 year

-Over 1 year

Accounts receivable, deposits 

and prepayments

note:

(i) Trade debtors are net of provision and the ageing is classified based on invoice date.

(ii) The Group has a defined credit policy for the respective business units.

15

16

17

(i)

(ii)

1,137

53

1,190

1,872

3,062

-

-

-

172

172

960

45

1,005

1,350

2,355

-

-

-

192

192
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18 Creditors, Accounts Payable, Deposits and Accruals

Group Company 

in HK$ million 2000 1999 2000 1999

Trade creditors

-Within 1 year

-Over 1 year

Accounts payable, 

deposits and accruals

19 Share Capital

Number of shares of  HK$0.40 each HK$ million

Authorised :

At 1 January 2000 2,500,000,000 1,000

Increase during the year 500,000,000 200

At 31 December 2000 3,000,000,000 1,200

Issued and fully paid :

At 1 January 2000 2,127,367,160 851

Issued during the year 100,000,000 40

Repurchase during the year (31,367,000) (13)

At 31 December 2000 2,196,000,160 878
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19

892

9

901

1,586

2,487

-

-

-

143

143

458

16

474

1,537

2,011

-

-

-

238

238
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19

Purchase price per share
Number of shares Total purchase price  Highest Lowest 

Month/Year repurchased HK$ million HK$ HK$ 

January 2000 1,041,000 34 33.10 32.90

March 2000 650,000 27 41.80 41.40

April 2000 500,000 18 36.60 36.50

September 2000 13,612,000 453 37.20 30.70

October 2000 8,064,000 254 33.60 28.80

November 2000 7,500,000 218 33.20 26.55

31,367,000 1,004

19 Share Capital continued

Changes during the year

(i) In February 2000, 100,000,000 shares were issued at HK$40.38

per share for a total consideration of HK$4,038 million to finance

the acquisition of the telecommunications equipment and the

construction of auxiliary facilities to complement the fixed optical

fibre network and for future possible acquisitions in the People’s

Republic of China.

(ii) During the year, the Company repurchased a total of

31,367,000 of its own shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong

Kong Limited, all of which have been cancelled, as follows:



20 Reserves

a GROUP
Investment

Capital property Exchange

Share redemption Capital revaluation fluctuation General Retained

premium reserve reserve Goodwill reserve reserve reserve profits Total

in HK$ million

At 1 January 1999 20,881 3 5,227 (2,152) 325 15 124 16,625 41,048

Goodwill on consolidation written off - - - (2) - - - - (2)

Share of reserves of associated

companies - - - - 329 - - - 329

Reserves on acquisition - - 105 - - - - - 105

Surplus on revaluation of properties - - - - 46 - - - 46

Exchange translation differences - - - - 10 (9) - - 1

Reserves realised upon disposal - - (1,262) - - - - - (1,262)

Transfer from profit - - - - - - 4 (4) -

Profit attributable to shareholders - - - - - - - 2,966 2,966

Dividends (Note 7) - - - - - - - (5,904) (5,904) 

At 31 December 1999 20,881 3 4,070 (2,154) 710 6 128 13,683 37,327

Retained by :

Company and subsidiary companies 20,881 3 4,065 (2,154) 173 13 123 11,820 34,924

Associated companies - - 5 - 537 (7) 5 1,863 2,403

20,881 3 4,070 (2,154) 710 6 128 13,683 37,327

At 1 January 2000 20,881 3 4,070 (2,154) 710 6 128 13,683 37,327

Premium on issue of shares,  

net of expenses 3,901 - - - - - - - 3,901

Goodwill on consolidation written off - - - (1,779) - - - - (1,779)

Share of reserves of associated 

companies - - 4 - 33 491 - - 528

Reserve written off - - (12) - - - - - (12)

Surplus on revaluation of properties 

(Note 11a) - - - - 211 - - - 211

Exchange translation differences - - - - (7) 11 - - 4

Reserves released - - (448) - - - - - (448)

Repurchase of shares - - - - - - - (991) (991)

Transfer to capital redemption reserve - 13 - - - - - (13) -

Transfer from profit - - - - - - 4 (4) -

Profit attributable to shareholders - - - - - - - 3,430 3,430

Dividends (Note 7) - - - - - - - (1,871) (1,871)

At 31 December 2000 24,782 16 3,614 (3,933) 947 508 132 14,234 40,300

Retained by :

Company and subsidiary companies 24,782 16 3,605 (3,933) 377 24 127 11,526 36,524

Associated companies - - 9 - 570 484 5 2,708 3,776

24,782 16 3,614 (3,933) 947 508 132 14,234 40,300

7
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note:
The exchange fluctuation reserve included the Group’s share of the exchange reserve of
Cathay Pacific. As set out in accounting policies no.1(o), the Group’s profit and loss account
for the year ended 31 December 2000 would have increased by HK$444 million (1999:
HK$30 million) had Hong Kong SSAP 11 been adopted by Cathay Pacific.

o

107
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20 Reserves continued 20

b COMPANY
Capital

redemption Share Retained
reserve premium profits Total

in HK$ million

At 1 January 1999 3 20,881 13,238 34,122

Profit for the year available 

for distribution (Note 6) - - 2,673 2,673

Dividends (Note 7) - - (5,904) (5,904)

At 31 December 1999 3 20,881 10,007 30,891

At 1 January 2000 3 20,881 10,007 30,891

Premium on issue of shares,

net of expenses - 3,901 - 3,901

Repurchase of shares - - (991) (991)

Transfer to capital 

redemption reserve 13 - (13) -

Profit for the year available 

for distribution (Note 6) - - 3,647 3,647

Dividends (Note 7) - - (1,871) (1,871)

At 31 December 2000 16 24,782 10,779 35,577

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 December 2000,

calculated under section 79B of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance, amounted to hk$10,779 million (1999 : hk$10,007

million).
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21 Long Term Borrowings

a

Group Company 

in HK$ million 2000 1999 2000 1999 

Bank loans

- unsecured 12,792 14,991 10,231 10,879

- secured 314 512 - -

13,106 15,503 10,231 10,879

Other loans

- unsecured 1,429 2,434 1,402 1,402

- secured 100 125 - -

14,635 18,062 11,633 12,281

Amounts repayable within 

one year included 

under current liabilities (1,678) (1,451) - (281) 

12,957 16,611 11,633 12,000

21

a

–

–

–

–
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note :
(i) Bank loans and other loans of the Group and the Company not wholly repayable
within five years amounted to HK$1,686 million (1999 : HK$1,118 million) and HK$1,480
million (1999 : HK$780 million) respectively.

(ii) Included in the secured bank loans and secured other loans were amounts of HK$275
million and HK$100 million respectively, which were drawn under the facilities made
available by a consortium of banks and financial institutions (“the Lenders”) to a
subsidiary company up to a maximum aggregate amount of HK$1,675 million.  These
facilities are secured by fixed and floating charges on all of the assets of the subsidiary
company amounting to HK$1,843 million at 31 December 2000.

In addition, two designated bank accounts of the subsidiary company with a total
balance of HK$276 million at 31 December 2000 have been assigned in favour of the
Lenders.  Certain receipts by the subsidiary company are required to be banked into these
accounts while withdrawals are subject to restrictions in that minimum balances as
computed under various formulae are required to be maintained in these bank accounts.

(iii) The Company has issued a US$100,000,000 Senior Note due 2006 (the “Notes”).  The
Notes will rank in right of payment pari passu to all other indebtedness of the Company.
Interest on the Notes is payable semi-annually in arrear at 7.37% per annum.  The Notes
will mature on 15 February 2006 unless previously prepaid by the Company.

(iv) The Company has issued a Japanese Yen 9,500,000,000 Floating Rate Bond due 2002
(the “Bonds”).  Interest on the Bonds is payable semi-annually in arrears at six-month
London Inter-Bank Offered Rate for Japanese Yen minus 0.35% per annum.

(v) Bank loans and other loans, other than the Notes and the Bonds, are fully repayable
up to 2007 and bear interest at the prevailing market rate.

i

ii

iii

7.37%

iv

0 . 3 5 %

v
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b The maturity of the Group’s and the Company’s long term liabilities is 

as follows :

Group Company

in HK$ million 2000 1999 2000 1999

Bank loans are repayable

- in the first year 1,645 443 - 281

- in the second year 5,950 4,288 5,717 1,023

- in the third to fifth

years inclusive 4,858 10,692 3,914 9,575

- after the fifth year 653 80 600 -

13,106 15,503 10,231 10,879

Other loans are repayable

- in the first year 33 1,008 - -

- in the second year 662 33 622 -

- in the third to fifth

years inclusive 54 738 - 622

- after the fifth year 780 780 780 780

1,529 2,559 1,402 1,402

14,635 18,062 11,633 12,281

b

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–
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22 Deferred Taxation

Group

in HK$ million 2000 1999

Balance at 1 January 254 262

Exchange adjustments (9) 13

Net written back for the year (Note 5) (8) (7)

Effect of change in tax rate (Note 5) - (14)

Balance at 31 December 237 254

Provided in the accounts in respect of :

Accelerated depreciation allowances 237 254

Potential deferred tax liability has not been quantified for the 

surplus on the revalued investment properties in Hong Kong as this

does not constitute a timing difference for deferred taxation purposes.

23 Capital Commitments

Group

in HK$ million 2000 1999

Authorised but not contracted for (note) 21 -

Contracted but not provided for (note) 1,597 236

note :
The capital commitments of authorised but not contracted for and contracted but not 
provided for in respect of plant, property and equipment amount to HK$21 million (1999 : 
HK$ nil) and HK$1,560 million (1999 : HK$26 million) respectively.

22

5

( 5)

23
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Group 

in HK$ million

Properties commitments expiring
- in the first year
- in the second to fifth years inclusive
- after the fifth year

Other commitments expiring
- in the first year
- in the second to fifth years inclusive
- after the fifth year

2000

17

82

27

126

14

-

1

15

141

1999

20

56

10

86

-

1

-

1

87

24 Operating Lease Commitments

Operating lease commitments of the Group at 31 December 2000

payable in the next twelve months, analysed according to the

period in which the lease expires, are as follows :

24

–

–

–

–
–
–



25 Contingent Liabilities

a The Company has provided a guarantee for a credit facility of

HK$2,308 million in favour of a subsidiary company. The facility

used amounted to HK$2,308 million.

b The Group, through its subsidiary company, Adwood Company

Limited (“Adwood”), has a 35% effective interest in Western

Harbour Tunnel Company Limited (“WHTCL”).  WHTCL has been

established and contracted to construct the Western Harbour

Crossing (“Crossing”) for The Government of the Hong Kong

Special Administrative Region (“Hong Kong SAR”).

Pursuant to the deed of guarantee dated 2 September 1993 as

amended by the deed of novation dated 27 June 1995, the second

deed of novation dated 12 October 1998 and the third deed of

novation dated 30 May 2000 (“the Guarantee”), the Group

together with the other beneficial shareholders of WHTCL have

agreed jointly and severally to guarantee The Government of the

Hong Kong SAR that WHTCL will complete the Crossing within

budget of approximately HK$7.5 billion including repair costs to

be incurred after the operation date of the Crossing but before the

issuance of the Maintenance Certificate.

Pursuant to a shareholders agreement dated 30 December 1992

as amended by the supplemental deed dated 8 September 1994, the

second supplemental deed dated 12 October 1998 and the third

supplemental deed dated 23 May 2000 in respect of WHTCL, the

beneficial shareholders comprising the Group, Kerry Properties

Limited (“Kerry”), The Cross-Harbour (Holdings) Limited (“CHT”)

and China Merchants Holdings (International) Company Limited

(“CMH”), have agreed that in relation to any claim made or asserted

under the Guarantee, as between themselves, the total of all

liabilities in respect of a claim thereunder and of all costs,

25

a

b Adwood Company

Limited ( Adwood )

35%

114
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charges and expenses suffered or incurred by any of them resulting

therefrom or attributable thereto shall be shared by them in the

proportion to their respective ultimate ownership of the issued

capital of WHTCL, whether in the case of CHT and CMH, directly or, in

the case of the Group and Kerry, attributable by way of their direct

or indirect proportionate shareholdings in Adwood.

c The Company has provided a guarantee to The Export-Import

Bank of the United States (“Eximbank”) for an export credit up to

an initial maximum of US$134 million to a co-operative joint

venture company, Jiangsu Ligang Electric Power Company, Limited

(“Ligang”) pursuant to an agreement dated 3 July 1995 between

Ligang, the Company and Eximbank, by which Eximbank 

established a credit not exceeding US$134 million in favour of

Ligang for a period of 15 years, repayable by 24 semi-annual

instalments beginning 15 October 1998 at an interest rate of

5.95% per annum and the Company guaranteed the repayment of

the amounts outstanding under such contract.  As of the financial

year end date, the outstanding amount has been reduced to

US$101.5 million. Each equity participant in Ligang has agreed in

the joint venture agreement dated 19 September 1988 as

amended on 28 February 1995 to share in financial assistance to

Ligang in proportion to their respective equity interests in Ligang.

d The Company has provided a guarantee to Kreditanstalt fur

Wiederaufbau, a German state-owned bank, for an export credit

up to a maximum of US$ 23.9 million granted to a subsidiary

company, Jiangyin Xingcheng Special Steel Works Co., Ltd.

e The Company has provided a several guarantee up to a

maximum amount of approximately HK$1,477 million to support

a loan facility of HK$2,400 million granted by a group of financial

institutions to an associated company, Treasure Trove Limited.

Adwood

c

5.95%

d

e Treasure Trove

Limited
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25 Contingent Liabilities continued

f The Company, through its associated company, Swire Aviation

Limited, has a 10% effective interest in Hong Kong Air Cargo

Terminals Limited (“HACTL”).  Pursuant to the shareholders

agreement dated 29 January 1996 and the deed of shareholders

support dated 29 January 1996, the Company together with other

shareholders of hactl have agreed severally to give funding

support to HACTL.  The Company’s liability under the shareholders

agreement and the deed of shareholders support is a several

liability and will not be liable for more than its effective interest

(10%) in HACTL of aggregate calls, or amounts payable, by HACTL.

g The Company has provided a guarantee in respect of suppliers’

credit to a subsidiary company, Jiangyin Xingcheng Special Steel

Works Co., Ltd. with total principal amount of US$2,524,925

together with related interest.

h The Company, through its subsidiary company Adwood, has a

35% effective interest in Hong Kong Tunnels and Highways

Management Company Limited (“HKTHMC”).

Pursuant to the contract for the management, operation and

maintenance of the Cross Harbour Tunnel (“the CHT Agreement”),

HKTHMC has furnished to the Government of the Hong Kong SAR a

first demand banker’s guarantee in the sum of HK$30 million as

security for the due performance of the CHT Agreement.  Each of

Kerry, CHT, CMH and the Company, being the beneficial owners of

HKTHMC, in turn has provided a several guarantee to The

Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited in

proportion to their respective beneficial interest in HKTHMC. The

maximum liability of the Company under the guarantee is

HK$10.5 million plus any default interest and the expenses of The

Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited in

enforcing such guarantee.

25

f Swire Aviation

Limited

10%

10%

g

h Adwood

35%
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i The Company has provided a several guarantee up to 60% of

the liability of Shanghai Golden Link Limited, a subsidiary

company of the Company, under the lease agreement for leasing

certain equipment from IBM Leasing Company Limited at the

contract sum of approximately US$15.5 million.

j The Company has provided a several guarantee of  up to a

maximum amount of US$12.6 million to support a letter of credit

facility of US$21 million granted by a PRC bank to two subsidiary

companies in PRC.

26 Approval of Accounts

The accounts were approved by the Board of Directors on 19

March 2001.

i

j
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27 Principal Subsidiary Companies

The following are the principal subsidiary companies of the Group which in the opinion of the directors,

principally affect the results and net assets of the Group.  To give details of other subsidiary companies

would in the opinion of the directors result in particulars of excessive length.

Place of incorporation/ Interest in equity

Principal place of Particulars of issued shares# shares held by

operation No. of Par Company Subsidiary

Name                                 * Kind of legal entity shares value % % Principal activities

Aviation
Collinson Company Limited Republic of Liberia/Bermuda 498 - 100 - Investment holding
Custain Limited Hong Kong 2 HK$10 - 100 Investment holding
Easerich Investments Inc. British Virgin Islands/Bermuda 1 US$1 - 100 Investment holding
Hilldun Limited Hong Kong 3 HK$10 - 100 Investment holding
Jade Wonder Limited British Virgin Islands 1 US$1 - 100 Investment holding
Motive Link Holdings Inc. British Virgin Islands/Bermuda 1 US$1 - 100 Investment holding
Sidewinder Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands/Bermuda 1 US$1 - 100 Investment holding
Smooth Tone Investments Ltd. British Virgin Islands/Bermuda 1 US$1 - 100 Investment holding

Communications
Bright Generation Holdings Inc. British Virgin Islands 1 US$1 - 60 Investment holding
CITIC Data 1616 Limited Hong Kong 2 HK$1 - 100 Provision of data

transmission
services

CITIC Pacific Communications Bermuda 100,000 HK$1 - 100 Investment holding
Limited

CITIC Telecom 1616 Limited Hong Kong 2 HK$1 - 100 Provision of international
telecommunications
services

Data Communication Services Hong Kong 1,000 HK$1 - 100 Provision of 
Limited 38,000,000 HK$1 telecommunications

equipment
Direct Access Development Corp. British Virgin Islands 1 US$1 - 60 Investment holding
Dynamic Power Investments Ltd. British Virgin Islands 10 US$1 - 60 Investment holding
Essential Elements Holdings Corp. British Virgin Islands 1 US$1 - 60 Investment holding
Forever Glory International Ltd. British Virgin Islands 1 US$1 - 60 Investment holding
Glamorous Way Enterprises Ltd. British Virgin Islands 1 US$1 - 100 Investment holding
Glorious Style Enterprises Ltd. British Virgin Islands 1 US$1 - 60 Investment holding
Happy Land Enterprises Corp. British Virgin Islands 1 US$1 - 60 Investment holding
Konik Inc. British Virgin Islands 1 US$1 - 60 Investment holding
Lucky Zone Enterprises Inc. British Virgin Islands 10 US$1 - 60 Investment holding
Oracle Link Holdings Inc. British Virgin Islands 1 US$1 - 60 Investment holding
Power Point Enterprises Corp. British Virgin Islands 1 US$1 - 60 Investment holding
Supreme Magic Enterprises Ltd. British Virgin Islands 1 US$1 - 60 Investment holding
Vanderburg Inc. British Virgin Islands 10 US$1 - 60 Investment holding
World Navigation Limited Hong Kong 1,000 HK$1 - 100 Provision of international 

2,000,000 HK$1 telecommunications
services

∆

∆



Place of incorporation/ Interest in equity

Principal place of Particulars of issued shares# shares held by

operation No. of Par Company Subsidiary

Name                                 * Kind of legal entity shares value % % Principal activities

Power Generation
Classabove Holdings Limited Hong Kong 2 HK$1 - 100 Investment holding
Daybreak Holdings Limited Hong Kong 2 HK$1 - 100 Investment holding
Kong Yuen Investments Limited Hong Kong 2 HK$1 - 100 Investment holding
Premier Gold Holdings Corp. British Virgin Islands 1 US$1 - 100 Investment holding
Reynolds Holdings Limited Hong Kong 2 HK$1 - 100 Investment holding
Rising Star Enterprises Corp. British Virgin Islands 1 US$1 - 100 Investment holding
Sterling Lake Limited British Virgin Islands 1 US$1 - 100 Investment holding
Sunspark Power Investment Hong Kong 10,000 HK$1 - 100 Investment holding

Company Limited

Roads, Bridges and Tunnels
Adwood Company Limited Hong Kong 10 HK$10 20 50 Investment holding
Artford Pacific Investment Limited British Virgin Islands 1 US$1 - 100 Investment holding
Avon Pacific Limited British Virgin Islands 1 US$1 - 100 Investment holding
Bloomingshire Investment Limited British Virgin Islands 1 US$1 - 100 Investment holding
Bold Wave International British Virgin Islands 1 US$1 - 100 Investment holding

Development Ltd.
Cinta Company Limited British Virgin Islands 1 US$1 - 100 Investment holding
Crystalime Company Limited Hong Kong 2 HK$10 - 100 Investment holding
Eastern Unicom Development British Virgin Islands 1 US$1 - 100 Investment holding

Limited
Express Link Holdings Ltd. British Virgin Islands 1 US$1 - 100 Investment holding
Golden Race International British Virgin Islands 1 US$1 - 100 Investment holding

Investment Ltd.
Gradius Company Limited British Virgin Islands 1 US$1 - 100 Investment holding
Joyson Investment Limited British Virgin Islands 1 US$1 - 100 Investment holding
New Hong Kong Tunnel Company Hong Kong 75,000,000 HK$10 - 69.38 Tunnel operation

Limited
Newly Bright Investment Limited British Virgin Islands 1 US$1 - 100 Investment holding
Prime Star Enterprises Limited British Virgin Islands 1 US$1 - 100 Investment holding
Rank Dragon Investment Ltd. British Virgin Islands 1 US$1 - 100 Investment holding
Rich Creation Investments Ltd. British Virgin Islands 1 US$1 - 100 Investment holding
Triangle Peak Development Limited British Virgin Islands 1 US$1 - 100 Investment holding
Yan Wing Investments Limited Hong Kong 2 HK$1 - 100 Investment holding

Environment
Athens Investments, Inc. British Virgin Islands 1 US$1 - 100 Investment holding
Estoril Corp. British Virgin Islands 1 US$1 - 100 Investment holding
Unitex Holdings Corp. British Virgin Islands 1 US$1 - 100 Investment holding
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Place of incorporation/ Interest in equity

Principal place of Particulars of issued shares # shares held by

operation No. of Par Company Subsidiary

Name * Kind of legal entity shares value % % Principal activities

Trading & Distribution
Adachi Trading Company Limited Japan 250 JPY50,000 - 100 Trader of motor

vehicle spare parts
Confidence Motors Limited Hong Kong 1,000 HK$100 - 100 Motor vehicle distributor
Consolidated Parts & Accessories Hong Kong 1,000 HK$100 - 100 Trader of motor vehicle 

Sales Centre Limited spare parts
Dah Chong Hong (Canada) Ltd. Canada 650,000 - - 100 General 

import/export
Dah Chong Hong (China) Limited Hong Kong 1,000 HK$100 - 100 Investment holding
Dah Chong Hong - Dragonair Airport Hong Kong 10,000 HK$1 - 70 Provision of airport 

GSE Service Limited ground support 
equipment 
maintenance services 

Dah Chong Hong (Engineering) Limited Hong Kong 10,000 HK$100 - 100 Engineering services
Dah Chong Hong Holdings Limited Hong Kong 21,031,837 HK$10 - 100 Investment holding
Dah Chong Hong, Limited Hong Kong 50,000 HK$1,000 - 100 Investment holding;

general importers,
retailers and exporters
dealing in foodstuffs, 
electrical appliances
and other products

Dah Chong Hong (Japan) Limited Japan 480,000 JPY1,000 - 100 Importer and
exporter of 
foodstuffs, motor
vehicles and 
garments; property 
investment

Dah Chong Hong (Motor Service Hong Kong 2,000 HK$100 - 100 Motor vehicle 
Centre) Limited repairing and 

servicing
Dah Chong Hong Motors (China) Hong Kong 20,000 HK$100 - 100 Investment holding

Limited
Dah Chong Hong (Motor Leasing) Hong Kong 10,000 HK$10 - 100 Motor leasing

Limited
Dah Chong Hong Trading (Singapore) Singapore 3,500,000 S$1 - 100 Investment holding and

Pte. Ltd. trading of foodstuffs
DCH Food Industries Limited Hong Kong 2 HK$10 - 100 Investment holding 
DCH Healthcare Products Limited Hong Kong 100,000 HK$100 - 100 Distribution and retailing 

of healthcare and 
pharmaceutical products

DCH Motors Ltd. Canada 100 CAN$1 - 100 Motor vehicle distributor
DCH Motors (Bentley) Limited Hong Kong 2 HK$1 - 100 Motor vehicle distributor
Gentech Vehicle Engineering Limited Hong Kong 166,000 HK$1 - 100 Trading of special 

function vehicles
Harmony Motors Limited Hong Kong 1,000 HK$100 - 100 Motor vehicle distributor
Honest Motors, Limited Hong Kong 3,000 HK$1,000 - 100 Motor vehicle distributor

27 Principal Subsidiary Companies continued
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Place of incorporation/ Interest in equity

Principal place of Particulars of issued shares # shares held by

operation No. of Par Company Subsidiary

Name * Kind of legal entity shares value % % Principal activities

Japan Auto Parts Company Limited Hong Kong 1,000 HK$100 - 100 Trader of motor vehicle 
spare parts

Premium Motors Limited Hong Kong 2 HK$1 - 100 Motor vehicle distributor
Regal Motors, Limited Hong Kong 2,000 HK$100 - 100 Motor vehicle distributor 
Reliance Motors, Limited Hong Kong 3,000 HK$1,000 - 100 Motor vehicle distributor
Shanghai DCH Food Industries Ltd. People’s Republic of China N /A N /A - 100 Food processing and trading

* Wholly foreign-owned enterprise
Shanghai DCH Jinshan Co., Ltd. People’s Republic of China N /A N /A - 38.5 Production and selling 

* Sino-foreign equity JV of meat and related
food products

Shanghai DCH Jiangnanfeng Co., Ltd. People’s Republic of China N /A N /A - 46.06 Production and selling of
* Sino-foreign equity JV chickens and related

food products
Shanghai RFCI Restaurant Co., Ltd. People’s Republic of China N /A N /A - 90 Provision of food, beverage 

* Sino-foreign co-operative JV and retail sales of 
rainforest-theme souvenir
merchandise

Triangle Auto Pte Ltd Singapore 3,000,000 S$1 - 100 Motor vehicle distributor
Triangle Motors Limited Hong Kong 30,000 HK$100 - 100 Motor vehicle distributor

Property
Admarch Limited Hong Kong 2 HK$10 - 100 Property investment
Admarch Property Management Hong Kong 2 HK$1 - 100 Property management

Company, Limited
Baylink Investments Limited British Virgin Islands 1 US$1 - 100 Investment holding
Borgia Limited Hong Kong 2 HK$10 - 100 Property investment
Broadway Centre Property Hong Kong 2 HK$1 - 100 Property management

Management Company Limited
Campbellton Development Limited Hong Kong 2 HK$1 - 100 Property development
Famous Land Limited Hong Kong 2 HK$1 - 100 Property investment
Glenridge Company Limited Hong Kong 2 HK$10 - 100 Property investment
Goldenburg Properties Limited Hong Kong 1,000 HK$10 - 70 Property investment
Hang Luen Chong Investment Hong Kong 80,000 HK$100 - 100 Property investment

Company, Limited
Hang Luen Chong Property Hong Kong 2 HK$1 - 100 Property management

Management Company, Limited
Hang Wah Chong Investment Hong Kong 50,000 HK$100 - 100 Property investment

Company Limited
Jewril Limited Hong Kong 2 HK$1 - 100 Investment holding
Kendorm Corporation Republic of Liberia/Bermuda 1 - - 100 Investment holding
Kimble Investment Limited British Virgin Islands 1 US$1 - 100 Investment holding
Kowill Investments Inc. British Virgin Islands 1 US$1 - 100 Investment holding
Lindenford Limited Hong Kong 2 HK$10 - 100 Property investment
Neostar Investment Limited Hong Kong 2 HK$1 - 100 Property investment
Newmarket Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands/ 2 US$1 - 100 Investment holding
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Place of incorporation/ Interest in equity

Principal place of Particulars of issued shares # shares held by

operation No. of Par Company Subsidiary

Name * Kind of legal entity shares value % % Principal activities

Pacific Grace Limited Hong Kong 2 HK$1 - 100 Property investment
Sun King Fung Development Limited Hong Kong 152,343,165 HK$0.10 100 - Investment holding
Supreme Luck Investments Ltd. British Virgin Islands 1 US$1 - 100 Investment holding
Tendo Limited Hong Kong 2 HK$10 - 100 Property investment
Yee Lim Godown & Cold Storage Hong Kong 1,000,000 HK$1 - 100 Operate a dry and

Limited cold storage 
godown

Finance
Balgonie Limited Hong Kong 2 HK$1 100 - Financing
CITIC Pacific Finance Limited Cayman Islands 1,000 US$1 100 - Financing
Idealand Investment Inc. Republic of Panama 100 US$1 - 100 Financing
South Star Holdings Inc. British Virgin Islands/ 1 US$1 100 - Financing

Bermuda

Industrial Manufacturing
Crown Sky Investment Limited British Virgin Islands 1 US$1 - 100 Investment holding
Jiangyin Xingcheng Special People’s Republic of China N /A N /A - 55 Steel making

Steel Works Co., Ltd. * Sino-foreign equity JV
Jiangyin Xingcheng Steel People’s Republic of China N /A N /A - 55 Steel making

Products Co., Ltd. * Sino-foreign equity JV
Jiangyin Xing Cheng Steel People’s Republic of China N /A N /A - 55 Steel making

Works Co., Ltd. * Sino-foreign equity JV
Joyce Court Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands 1 US$1 - 100 Investment holding
Maxy Rich Investments Limited British Virgin Islands 1 US$1 - 100 Investment holding
Shine Mass Holdings Ltd. British Virgin Islands 1 US$1 - 100 Investment holding
Wuxi Huada Motors Co., Ltd. People’s Republic of China N /A N /A - 55 Industrial motors 

* Sino-foreign equity JV manufacturing

# Represented ordinary shares, unless otherwise stated.
∆ Non-voting deferred shares - the rights, privileges and restrictions of which are set out in the Articles of Association of the respective company.

27 Principal Subsidiary Companies continued



123

27

S
T

A
T

U
T

O
R

Y
 

R
E

P
O

R
T

S

* % %

Collinson Company Limited 498 - 100 -
Custain Limited 2 10 - 100
Easerich Investments Inc. 1 1 - 100
Hilldun Limited 3 10 - 100
Jade Wonder Limited 1 1 - 100
Motive Link Holdings Inc. 1 1 - 100
Sidewinder Holdings Limited 1 1 - 100
Smooth Tone Investments Ltd. 1 1 - 100

1 1 - 60
1616 2 1 - 100

100,000 1 - 100
1616 2 1 - 100

Data Communication Services Limited 1,000 1 - 100
38,000,000 1

1 1 - 60
Dynamic Power Investments Ltd. 10 1 - 60

1 1 - 60
1 1 - 60
1 1 - 100

Glorious Style Enterprises Ltd. 1 1 - 60
1 1 - 60

Konik Inc. 1 1 - 60
10 1 - 60

Oracle Link Holdings Inc. 1 1 - 60
1 1 - 60
1 1 - 60

Vanderburg Inc. 10 1 - 60
1,000 1 - 100

2,000,000 1

2 1 - 100
2 1 - 100
2 1 - 100

Premier Gold Holdings Corp. 1 1 - 100
2 1 - 100

Rising Star Enterprises Corp. 1 1 - 100
1 1 - 100

10,000 1 - 100

Adwood Company Limited 10 10 20 50
1 1 - 100

Avon Pacific Limited 1 1 - 100
Bloomingshire Investment Limited 1 1 - 100

1 1 - 100
Cinta Company Limited 1 1 - 100

2 10 - 100

∆

∆
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* % %

1 1 - 100
Express Link Holdings Ltd. 1 1 - 100

1 1 - 100
Gradius Company Limited 1 1 - 100

1 1 - 100
75,000,000 10 - 69.38

1 1 - 100
Prime Star Enterprises Limited 1 1 - 100

1 1 - 100
Rich Creation Investments Ltd. 1 1 - 100

1 1 - 100
2 1 - 100

Athens Investments, Inc. 1 1 - 100
Estoril Corp. 1 1 - 100
Unitex Holdings Corp. 1 1 - 100

250 50,000 - 100
1,000 100 - 100
1,000 100 - 100

650,000 - - 100
1,000 100 - 100

10,000 1 - 70

10,000 100 - 100
21,031,837 10 - 100

50,000 1,000 - 100

480,000 1,000 - 100

2,000 100 - 100
100 - 100
10 - 100

3,500,000 1 - 100
2 10 - 100

100,000 100 - 100
DCH Motors Ltd. 100 1 - 100

1 - 100
166,000 1 - 100

1,000 100 - 100
3,000 1,000 - 100
1,000 100 - 100

2 1 100
2,000 100 - 100
3,000 1,000 - 100

- 100

- 38.5

- 46.06
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* % %

- 90

3,000,000 1 - 100
30,000 100 - 100

2 10 - 100
2 1 - 100

Baylink Investments Limited 1 1 - 100
Borgia Limited 2 10 - 100

2 1 - 100
2 1 - 100
2 1 - 100

Glenridge Company Limited 2 10 - 100
Goldenburg Properties Limited 1,000 10 70

80,000 100 - 100
2 1 - 100

50,000 100 - 100
Jewril Limited 2 1 - 100
Kendorm Corporation 1 - - 100
Kimble Investment Limited 1 1 - 100
Kowill Investments Inc. 1 1 - 100
Lindenford Limited 2 10 - 100

2 1 - 100
Newmarket Holdings Limited 2 1 - 100

2 1 - 100
152,343,165 0.10 100 -

Supreme Luck Investments Ltd. 1 1 - 100
Tendo Limited 2 10 - 100

1,000,000 1 - 100

Balgonie Limited 2 1 100 -
CITIC Pacific Finance Limited 1,000 1 100 -
Idealand Investment Inc. 100 1 - 100
South Star Holdings Inc. 1 1 100 -

1 1 - 100
- 55

- 55

- 55

1 1 - 100
1 1 - 100
1 1 - 100

- 55

∆ —
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28 Principal Associated Companies

The following are the principal associated companies of the Group which in the opinion of the directors,

principally affect the results and net assets of the Group.  To give details of other associated companies would

in the opinion of the directors result in particulars of excessive length.

Place of Group equity

Name incorporation interest % Principal activities

Aviation

Cathay Pacific Airways Limited Hong Kong 25.65 Airlines and related services

(note)

Hong Kong Dragon Airlines Limited Hong Kong 28.50 Aviation

Swire Aviation Limited Hong Kong 33.33 Investment holding in 

Hong Kong Air Cargo 

Terminals Limited

Communications
CITIC Guoan Co., Ltd. People’s Republic of 50 Investment holding

China
Companhia de Telecomunicacoes Macau 20 Telecommunications services

de Macau S.A.R.L.

Tunnels

Eastern Harbour Crossing Company Hong Kong 50 Tunnel operation

Limited

Hong Kong Tunnels and Highways Hong Kong 35 Management, operation and 

Management Company Limited maintenance of the 

Cross Harbour Tunnel

Western Harbour Tunnel Hong Kong 35 Franchise to construct and 

Company Limited operate the Western Harbour

Crossing

Environment

Ecoserve Limited Hong Kong 50 Design, construction and 

operation of refuse transfer 

station

Enviropace Limited Hong Kong 20 Design, construction, 

operation and 

management of chemical 

waste treatment plant
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Place of Group equity

Name incorporation interest % Principal activities

Green Valley Landfill, Limited Hong Kong 30 Landfill construction and 
operation

South China wmi Transfer Limited Hong Kong 30 Design, construction and
operation of transfer 
station

Property
Cheer First Limited Hong Kong 40 Financing
CITIC Tower Property Management Hong Kong 40 Property management

Company Limited
Danton Investment Limited British Virgin Islands 40 Investment holding
Festival Walk Holdings Limited Hong Kong 50 Property investment
Goldon Investment Limited Hong Kong 40 Property investment
Hong Kong Resort Company Limited Hong Kong 50 Property development
Kido Profits Limited British Virgin Islands 15 Property development
Shinta Limited Hong Kong 20 Property investment
Sun Kong Investment Company, Hong Kong 40 Property development

Limited
Treasure Trove Limited Hong Kong 50 Financing

Others
Shiseido Dah Chong Hong Cosmetics Hong Kong 50 Trading in cosmetics products

Limited
Way Chong Finance Limited Hong Kong 50 Provision of hire purchase 

and leasing finance

note: Extract from the published accounts of Cathay Pacific Airways Limited, a significant associated company of the Group, is shown on pages 134-135.
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28

25.65
28.50

Swire Aviation Limited 33.33

50
20

Eastern Harbour Crossing Company Limited 50
35
35

50
20
30
30

Cheer First Limited 40
40

Danton Investment Limited 40
50
40
50

Kido Profits Limited 15
20
40

Treasure Trove Limited 50

50
50

134 135
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29 Principal Co-operative Joint Ventures

The following are the principal co-operative joint ventures of the

Group, which in the opinion of the directors, principally affect the

results and net assets of the Group.  To give details of other co-

operative joint ventures would in the opinion of the directors result

in particulars of excessive length.  All of the principal co-operative

joint ventures have their place of incorporation and operations in

the People’s Republic of China.

Co-operative
joint venture Group equity Principal

Name period interest % activities

Jiangsu Ligang Electric Power (note  a) 56.31 Electric power plant construction

Company Limited (“Ligang”) and operation

a

Zhengzhou Xinli Electric Power (note b ) 50 Electric power plant construction

Co., Ltd. (“Xinli”) and operation

b

Shanghai Citic Tunnel Development 31 years from 50 Tunnel construction, management

Co., Ltd. (note c) 7 October 1993 and operation

c

Shanghai Huang Pu River Tunnel 20 years from 45 Tunnel and bridges management

and Bridges Development Co., Ltd. 1 January 1995 and operation

(note c)

c

Shanghai Jian Tai Co., Ltd. 20 years from 45 Toll road management and operation

(note c) 1 January 1996

c

Shanghai Xupu Bridge Development 20 years from 45 Bridge management and operation

Co., Ltd. (note c) 1 July 1996

c

29
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Co-operative
joint venture Group equity Principal

Name period interest % activities

Chongqing Chang Jiang ljt 20 years from 50 Bridge management and operation

Bridge Co., Ltd. (note c) 1 December 1997

c

Chongqing Qiao Gao Infrastructure 20 years from 50 Bridge management and operation

Co., Ltd. (note c) 1 December 1997

c

Chongqing Qiao Feng Infrastructure 20 years from 50 Bridge management and operation

Co., Ltd. (note c) 1 December 1997

c

Chongqing Qiao Xin Infrastructure 20 years from 50 Bridge management and operation

Co., Ltd. (note c) 1 December 1997

c

Chongqing Cheng Fu Infrastructure 20 years from 50 Bridge management and operation

Co., Ltd. (note c) 1 December 1997

c

Chongqing Cheng Tai Infrastructure 20 years from 50 Bridge management and operation

Co., Ltd. (note c) 1 December 1997

c

Chongqing Cheng Xin Infrastructure 20 years from 50 Bridge management and operation

Co., Ltd. (note c) 1 December 1997

c
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note : 
a Ligang Phase I and II are accounted for as investments of the Group as the Group’s
interests therein will revert to the joint venture partners in the People’s Republic of China
after fifteen years and twenty years respectively from the date on which the electricity
generators became operational.  Accordingly their results are accounted for to the extent of
dividends received and receivable, less amounts amortised.

b Xinli is accounted for as investment of the Group as the Group’s interest therein will
revert to the joint venture partners in the People’s Republic of China after fifteen years from
the date on which the electricity generators became operational.  Accordingly its results are
accounted for to the extent of dividends received and receivable, less amounts amortised.

c The Group is guaranteed a fixed return on the investment amount of the co-operative
joint ventures.  Upon the expiration of the co-operation period, all the Group’s interests in
Shanghai Citic Tunnel Development Co., Ltd. and other co-operative joint ventures will
revert to Shanghai People’s Government/Chongqing People’s Government and the joint
venture partners in the People’s Republic of China respectively.

a

b

c
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Auditors’ Report

To the Shareholders of CITIC Pacific Limited

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the accounts on pages 74 to 131 which have been

prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally

accepted in Hong Kong, save as explained in accounting policy

No.1(o) on page 89.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The Hong Kong Companies Ordinance requires the directors to

prepare accounts which give a true and fair view.  In preparing

accounts which give a true and fair view it is fundamental that

appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied consistently.  

It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based on

our audit, on those accounts and to report our opinion to you.

Basis of opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Statements of Auditing

Standards issued by the Hong Kong Society of Accountants.  An

audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to

the amounts and disclosures in the accounts.  It also includes an

assessment of the significant estimates and judgements made by the

directors in the preparation of the accounts, and of whether the

accounting policies are appropriate to the circumstances of the

Company and the Group, consistently applied and adequately

disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the

information and explanations which we considered necessary in

order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable

assurance as to whether the accounts are free from material

misstatement.  In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall

adequacy of the presentation of information in the accounts.  We

believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

74 131

89

1(o)
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Opin ion

In our opinion, the accounts give a true and fair view of the state of

affairs of the Company and the Group as at 31 December 2000 and

of the profit and cash flows of the Group for the year then ended and

have been properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong , 19 March 2001
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a CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

for the year ended 31 December 2000

in HK$ million 2000 1999

Turnover

Passenger services

Cargo services

Catering and other services

Total turnover

Expenses

Staff 
Route
Fuel
Aircraft maintenance
Depreciation and operating leases
Commissions
Others

Operating expenses

Operating profit

Finance charges

Finance income

Net finance charges

Profit on sale of investments

Share of profits of associated companies

Profit before taxation

Taxation

Profit after taxation

Minority interests 

Profit attributable to shareholders

Dividends

Retained profit for the year

18,979

8,391

1,332

28,702

(7,299)

(6,352)

(3,641)

(2,714)

(3,886)

(663)

(1,336)

(25,891)

2,811

(2,775)

1,857

(918)

482

108

2,483

(219)

2,264

(84)

2,180

(1,016)

1,164

22,878

10,136

1,509

34,523

(7,482)

(6,756)

(5,770)

(2,920)

(4,244)

(719)

(1,343)

(29,234)

5,289

(2,731)

2,364

(367)

-

279

5,201

(110)

5,091

(86)

5,005

(2,182)

2,823
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Cathay Pacific Airways Limited

a
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b

Extract from Published Accounts of

Cathay Pacific Airways Limited
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b CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

at 31 December 2000

in HK$ million 2000 1999
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Non-current assets and liabilities
Fixed assets
Intangible assets
Investments in associated companies
Other long-term receivables and investments

Long-term liabilities
Related pledged security deposits
Net long-term liabilities
Deferred taxation

Net non-current assets

Current assets and liabilities

Stock
Trade and other receivables
Liquid funds

Current portion of long-term liabilities
Related pledged security deposits
Net current portion of long-term liabilities
Trade and other payables
Unearned transportation revenues
Taxation
Proposed dividend

Net current assets
Total assets less current and non-current 

liabilities 
Minority interests
Net assets
CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital
Reserves
Shareholders’ funds

48,548
411

1,532
2,224

52,715

(36,863)
17,808
(19,055)

(7,146)
(26,201)
26,514

647
5,006

11,040
16,693
(2,918)
1,135
(1,783)
(5,619)
(2,254)

(620)
(1,508)

(11,784)
4,909

31,423
(99)

31,324

670
30,654
31,324

48,131
410

1,367
2,181

52,089

(39,380)
16,622

(22,758)
(6,714)

(29,472)
22,617

648
3,832

11,595
16,075
(2,588)

563
(2,025)
(6,052)
(1,741)

(659)
(914)

(11,391)
4,684

27,301
(86)

27,215

676
26,539
27,215
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5 Year Statistics

1996 1997 1998 1999 2000

At year end (HK $m):

Shareholders’ funds - 36,528 40,225 41,899 38,178 41,178

per share (HK $) 17.12 18.91 19.70 17.95 18.75

Debt -

debt less bank deposits 9,649 22,592 21,175 10,519 10,508

net debt/shareholders’ 

funds 26% 56% 51% 28% 26%

net debt/stockmarket

value 10% 34% 60% 17% 17%

interest cover (times) 20 6 4 4 5

Capital employed  46,771 63,527 63,974 56,741 56,887

Fixed assets 9,929 10,472 11,765 11,916 13,433

Associated companies 26,256 40,210 40,145 23,167 26,286

Investments 9,208 11,196 11,574 14,560 9,479

Stockmarket capitalization 95,800 65,520 35,530 62,230 60,720

EBITDA 4,412 5,881 4,919 4,994 5,379

For the year (HK $m):

Earnings -

Earnings 6,860 7,376 2,808 2,966 3,430

per share - (HK $) 3.22 3.46 1.32 1.39 1.56

Dividends -

per share - (HK $)

regular 0.62 0.70 0.70 0.75 0.85

special 0.30 0.30 - 2.00 -

cover (times) 2.7 2.8 1.9 1.9 1.8

Number of shareholders 6,215 8,642 14,987 13,506 9,808

Number of employees 11,750 11,800 11,871 10,490 11,354

Statutory Reports
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Terms:
Capital employed Capital employed represents shareholders’

funds plus total borrowings

Cash contributed Cash inflow to CITIC Pacific from all its
from all business subsidiary companies, associated 

companies and other investments

Total debt Short term and long term loans, notes 
and bonds

Net debt Total debt less cash and bank deposits

Shareholders’ equity Shareholders’ funds + goodwill written 
off for accounting purposes

EBITDA Total earnings before interest expenses, 
taxation, depreciation and amortisation

Contribution Net income from each business before 
amortisation of goodwill, and interest 
and overheads paid by CITIC Pacific

Ratios:

Earnings per share

Shareholders’ equity
per share

Leverage

Cashflow per share

Interest cover

Profit attributable to shareholders
Weighted average number of shares (by

days) in issue for the year

Shareholders’ equity
Total issued and fully paid shares at

end of the year

Net debt
Shareholders’ equity

Cash contributed from all business
Total issued and fully paid shares at

end of the year

EBITDA
Interest expense

Glossary
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Major Properties Held For Investment

Leasehold Group’s Approximate Gross

Address / Lot No. Expiry Interest % Floor Area (sq. ft.) Existing Use

* 1. Skyway House, 3 Sham Mong Road, Kowloon 2041 100 294,158 Commercial

2604/2700th shares of KIL, No.9706 & the extension thereto

2. Block C of Yee Lim Industrial Centre, 2-28 Kwai Lok Street, and 2047 100 320,195 Cold Storage &

2-6 Kwai Hei Street, Kwai Chung Godown

4000/9000th shares of KCTL No.333

3. Honest Motors Building, 9-11, Leighton Road, Causeway Bay, 2880 100 47,487 Commercial

Hong Kong IL No. 5431 and 5432

4. Wyler Centre 1, Basement 1& 2 and Parking Spaces Nos P50 and 2047 100 393,488 Industrial

P51 on 2nd Floor of Wyler Centre 2, 192-210 Tai Lin Pai Road,

Kwai Chung, New Territories 

5779/11152th shares of and in the Remaining Portion of Kwai Chung Town

Lot No.130 and the extension thereto 

5. Broadway Centre, No.93 Kwai Fuk Road, Kwai Chung, 2047 100 343,000 Godown

New Territories KCTL No.435

6. DCH Commercial Centre, No.25, Westlands Road, 2047 100 389,000 Commercial

Quarry Bay, Hong Kong IL8854

7. CITIC Tower, No.1 Tim Mei Avenue, Central, Hong Kong IL No.8822 2047 40 562,000 Commercial

8. Festival Walk, Tat Chee Avenue, Yau Yat Tsuen, Kowloon NKIL No.6181 2047 50 1,200,000 Commercial

9. Hiro-o Garden Hills, West Hill I-1204, Hiro-o 4-chome, Freehold 100 873 Residential

Shibuya-ku, Tokyo, Japan 

10. Hiro-o Garden Hills, Centre Hill H-1403, Hiro-o 4-chome, Freehold 100 2,012 Residential

Shibuya-ku, Tokyo, Japan 

11. Hiro-o Garden Hills, South Hill D-507, Hiro-o 4-chome, Freehold 100 2,264 Residential

Shibuya-ku, Tokyo, Japan 

12. Dah Chong No.1 Building, 12-6, Roppongi, 3-chome, Freehold 100 34,528 Commercial &

Minato-ku, Tokyo, Japan Restaurants, etc.

13. Dah Chong No.2 Building, B1/F-4/F, 18-2, Roppongi, 5-chome, Freehold 100 13,067 Commercial &

Minato-ku, Tokyo, Japan Restaurants, etc.

14. Toriizaka House 14-19, Roppongi, 5-chome, Minato-ku, Tokyo, Japan Freehold 100 7,352 Residential & Office

* excluding a petrol filling station on the ground floor with an ancillary storage tank in part of the basement and a storeroom on the first floor

Major Properties Held For Development
Estimated Approximate Approximate

Stage of Completion Leasehold Group’s Site  Area Gross Floor

Location / Lot No Completion Date Classification Expiry Interest % (sq. ft.) Area (sq.ft.) Existing Use

1. Lot Nos.390, 394, 395, 396, 397, 399, 400, N/A N/A N/A 2047 100 193,652 N/A Construction

401, 402, 405, 406, 407, 409, 410Rp, 412Rp, Site

413Rp, 414Rp, 416, 417, 418, 419 and 424 in 

D.D. No.121 and Lot Nos 274Rp, 278, 279,  

282, 283, 284, 285, 286sB Rp, 286sB ssl and 

286Rp in D.D. No.127 Yuen Long, New Territories

2. Lot No.3723 sD Rp in D.D. No.104 and Lot N/A N/A N/A 2047 40 2,460,637 N/A Agricultural

Nos.43A and 50 in D.D. No.101 and Lot Nos. Land

1266Rp, 1267 and 1268 in D.D. No.105, Yuen 

Long, New Territories 

3. No.500 and 502, Tung Chau Street, Cheung Sha N/A N/A N/A 2047 100 20,258 N/A Construction

Wan, Kowloon Site

NKIL No.4751 & 4752 

Major Properties Held For Sale
Leasehold Group’s Approximate Gross

Address / Lot No. Expiry Interest % Floor Area (sq.ft.) Existing Use

Grand Court, 109-135 Kadoorie Avenue, Kowloon 2006 100 135,340 Residential

Subsections 1 and 2 and the Remaining Portion of Section D of KIL No.2657

as at 31 December 2000
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%

* 1. 2041 100 294,158

2. 2047 100 320,195

3. 2880 100 47,487

4. 2047 100 393,488

5. 2047 100 343,000

6. 2047 100 389,000

7. 2047 40 562,000

8. 2047 50 1,200,000

9. Hiro-o Garden Hills, West Hill I-1204, Hiro-o 4-chome, 100 873

Shibuya-ku, Tokyo, Japan 

10. Hiro-o Garden Hills, Centre Hill H-1403, Hiro-o 4-chome, 100 2,012

Shibuya-ku, Tokyo, Japan 

11. Hiro-o Garden Hills, South Hill D-507, Hiro-o 4-chome, 100 2,264

Shibuya-ku, Tokyo, Japan 

12. Dah Chong No.1 Building, 12-6, Roppongi, 3-chome, 100 34,528

Minato-ku, Tokyo, Japan

13. Dah Chong No.2 Building, B1/F-4/F, 18-2, Roppongi, 5-chome, 100 13,067

Minato-ku, Tokyo, Japan

14. Toriizaka House 14-19, Roppongi, 5-chome, Minato-ku, Tokyo, Japan 100 7,352

*
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Corporate Information

Registered Office
32nd Floor, CITIC Tower
1 Tim Mei Avenue
Central
Hong Kong

Information 
www.citicpacific.com
Bloomberg: 267 hk equity
Reuters: 0267. hk

Contact
Telephone: 2820 2111
Fax: 2877 2771
Email: contact@citicpacific.com

property@citicpacific.com

Auditors
PricewaterhouseCoopers
22nd Floor, Prince’s Building
Central
Hong Kong

Registrars
Tengis Limited
4th Floor, Hutchison House
10 Harcourt Road
Hong Kong
Telephone:  2846 9666
Fax:  2810 8185

Company Secretary
Alice Tso Mun Wai

Key Dates
Closure of Register: 9 May 2001 to 15 May 2001
Annual General Meeting: 15 May 2001, 10:30 am

Island Ballroom, Level 5
Island Shangri-La Hotel
Two Pacific Place
Supreme Court Road
Hong Kong

Final Dividend payable: 21 May 2001

www.citicpacific.com
267 hk equity
0267. hk

2820 2111
2877 2771
contact@citicpacific.com
property@citicpacific.com

2846 9666
2810 8185
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